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NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS 

NOTICE 1s herebv mven that the THIRTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of A.K. SPINTEX 
LIMITED will be held af its rewistered office at 14 KLM, Stone, Chittorgarh Road, Biliya Kalan, 
BHILWARA-311001 on Monday, 30" September, 2024 at 11.00 A.M. to transact the followine business 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

|, To receive considers and adopts the audited statement of accounts of the Company for the vear ended 
31st March. 2024. together with reports of the Directors and Auditor's thereon 

2, Toappont a director in place of Mr. Tilok Chand Chhabra (DIN: 00167401) who retires by rotation in 
terms of Section 152(6) of Companies Act.2013 and being eligible offer himself for reappointment 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

3, To consider and if thought fit, to pass. with or without modificanon(s). the following Resolution ag an Ordinary 
Resolution:- 
Ratification of Remuncration of Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25 

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Secuon |48 and other applicable provisions. if any, of the 

Companies Act. 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. M/s. K.C. Moondira & Associates. 

(Cost Accountants appointed as the Cost Auditors of the Company by the Board of Directors, for the conduct of 

the audit of the-cost records of the Company for the finanetal year 2024-25 ot a remuneration of Rs. 35,000". 

(Rupees Fifty Thowsaid Only) excluding goods aid service tax, travelling and other out-of-pocket expenses 

incurred by them in connection with -the aforesaid audit be and is hereby ratified and confirmed. 

‘4+, Increase in borrowing wpto Rs. 31) crores or the ageregate of the paid up capital and free reserves of the Company, 

whichever ts higher 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with er without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Special 
Resolution:- 

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company in 
Annual General Meeting held on 30" September, 2014. and pursuant to the provisions of Section 
18(41)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there 
under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the 
Articies of Association of the Company and subject to such other approvals as may be necessary, 
consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the 
Company (“hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’, which term shall be deemed to include any 
Committee thereof which the Board may hereinafter constitute io exercise its powers including the 
powers conferred by this Resolution’) to borrow any sum or sums of money by obtaining loans, 
overdraft facilities. lines of credit, commercial papers, convertible’ nonconvertible debentures, 
external commercial borrowings (loans/bonds) or in any other forms from Banks. Financial 
Institutions, other Bodies Corporate or other eligible investors, from time to time, which, together with 
the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained or to be obtained 
from the Company's Bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed, al anv time, the 
aggregate of the paid-up share capital and free reserves, provided that the total amount so borrowed 
by the Board shall not at any time exceed Rs. 30 Crores (Rupees Thirty Crores only)



“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authonzed 
to do all such acts, deeds and things. to execute all such documents. instruments and wrilings as may 
be required to orve effect to this Resolution.” 

Creation of Charges on the movable and immovable properties of the Company. both present and future, 

in respect of borrowings. 

To consider and. if thought fil, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as a 
Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(the “Act™) and anv other applicable provisions, ifany of the AcL or any amendment or modifications 
thereof and pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company. consent of the 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to 
as the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof which the Board may 
hereinafter constitute to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution) to'sell, 
lease or dispose of in any manner including but not limited to morteawine, hv pothecating, pledging or 
In any manner creating charge on all or any part of the present and future moveable or immovable 
assets or properties of the Company or the whole or anv part of the undentaking(s) of the Company of 

every nature and kind whatsoever (hereinafler referred to as the “Assets’’) and/or creating a floating 
churge on the Assets to or in favour of banks, financial institutions, investors, debenture trustees or 
any other lenders to secure ihe amount borrowed by the company or anv entity which 1s a subsidiary 
or associate or group entity, from time to time, for the due re-pavment of principal and/or together with 
interest, charges, costs, expenses and all other monies pavable ly the Company or any such entity in 
respect of the such borrowings provided that the ageregzate indebtedness so secured by the assets do 
not al any lime exceed Rs. 30 Crores (Rupees Thirty Crores only) as approved under Seetion 180(1 Ke) 

of the Act.” 

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things, to execute all such documents, instruments and 
Writings as may be required to give effect to this Resolution ~ 

To consider and if thought fil, to pass, with or without modification(s). the followime_, resolution as 
Special Resolution 

Appointment of Independent Director 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 149, 152 and other applicable provision of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules made there under read with schedule [V of the Companies Act.2013 Mr, 
Aishwarya Tripathi,(DIN: 08751122) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the company 
effective from 30” May 2024 by the Board of Directors and who holds office until the date of Annual 
General Meeting. pursuant (o 16) of Companies Act.2013 and in respect of whom the company has 
received a notice under section | 60) of Companies act, 20113 proposing his candidature, be and is hereby 
appomted as Independent Director of the company up to 20" Mav, 2029. 

Appointment of Independent Director 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 149, 152 and other applicable provision of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules made there under read with schedule I'V of the Compames Act.2013 Mrs. Monika 
Latwani (DIN: 09769648) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the company effective 
from 30" May.2024 bv the Board of Directors and who holds office until the date of Annual General 



Meeting. pursuant to 161 of Companies Act.2013 and in respect of whom the company has received a 
notice under section 160 of Companies act. 2013 proposing his candidature, be and is herebv appointed 
as Independent Director (Woman) of the company up to 29" May, 2029. 

Registered Office: 
14" Km. Stone, Chittorgarh Road, 
Bilia Kalan, Bilwara— 311001. BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

PLACE: BHILWARA Ce SRINTESGLFp, 
DATE: 30.05.2024 et? 

(P. C. CHHABRA) 
MANAGINGORRRAGT OR 

in: 0015564 

TAR BAGRECA) 
COMPANY SECRETARY 

SOREREY SEOR TARY 
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(5, 

The Explanatory Statement setting out the maternal facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act’’), relating to the Special Business under Item Nos. 3-5 to be transacted at the 
Annual General Meeting and relevant details pursuant to SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the person seeking appointment/re-appointment as Director under 
item no. § and 9 of the notice are annexed. Pursuant to regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obliganons and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 the additional information of Director 
liable to retire by rotation and seeking re-appointment has been incorporated in the Corporate 
Governance Report forming part of Annual Report 2023-24 

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is entiled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote (on poll) instead of himself and the proxy need not be a Member of the 
Company. The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the 
Company's Registered Office, duly completed and signed, not less than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS 
before the meeting Proxies submitted on behall of limited companies, societies, etc, must be 
supported by appropriate resolutions/authorily, as applicable A person can act as proxy on behalf of 
Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 1()% of the total share 
capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 
10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as 
a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

In terms of “MCA Circulars” and “SEB! Circular”. the Company is seading this AGM Notice along with the 

Annual Report-2023-24 in electrome fonn only to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with 

the Company/Depositarices RTA. The Notice convening the AGM and the Annual Report-2023-24 has been 

uploaded on the website of the Company at wwwakspintes.com and may also be accessed from the relevant 
section of the websites of ihe Stock Exchanges ie BSE Limited ("BSE") at www bseindiacom. The AGM 

Notice is also available on the website of COSL at wi cvoting jndiacom 

Corporate Members intending to appoint their authorized representatives to attend the AGM and to vote through 
remote ¢-Voting/Voting at AGM are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution’ Power of 
Attomey to the Senstiniver by e-mail at corporatesolutionsi4a.gmail.com with a copy marked to 

akspintes gmail com 

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 
23.09.2033 to 30.09.2023 (both davs inclusive). 

Memibers’Proxi¢s attending the meeting are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report for 
reference at the Meeting and also the Attendance Slips duly filled in for attending the meeting. 

Shareholders seeking any information with regard to Accounts are requested to wnite to the Company 
at least 7 days before the date of the meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information 
ready 

The Members are requested to: 
Intimate changes, if any, in their registered addresses immediately 
Quote therr ledger folio number in all their correspondence 
Hand over the enclosed attendance slip, duly stgned m accordance with their specimen registered with 
the Company for admission to the meeling place. 
Bring their Annual Report and Attendance Slips with them al the AGM venue. 
Send their Email address to us for prompt communication and update the same with their DP. to 
receive soficopy of the Annual Report of the Company 

aft ME a 
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(i) 

9. The report on the Corporate Govermance and Management Discussion and Analysis also form part to 
the report of the Directors. 

Members seeking any information are requested to write to the Company by email al 
ukspintes wzmailcom at least 7 duvs before the date of the AGM to enable the management to reply 
appropriately at the AGM 

Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their address and E — Mail ID to their 

respective Depository Participants (DPs) in respect of their electrome share accounts and to the Registrar 
and Share Transfer Acent of the Company at Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd. Beetal 
House, 3" Noor, 99 Madangir. Behind Local Shopping center. Near Dada Harsukhads Mandir, New delhi- 
110062 

Electronic copy of the Annual report is being sent to the members whose email [Ds are regestered with the 
Company/Depository Participants unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For 
members who have nol registered their email address, physical copies of the Annual repori’s being sent in 
the permitted mode. 

. Members may also note that the Annual Report for FY 2023-24 will also available for downloading on 

Company's website ww akspintes.com- 

, Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Annual General 
Meeting needs to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representatives lo 
attend and vote at the Meeting 

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the members .al the 
reaistered office of the company on all working days, except Saturday, between 11°00 A.M and 1:00 P.M 

up to the date of the meeting 

CDSL e-Voting System — For Remote e-voting and e-voting during AGM 

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 

The voting period begins on 27-09-2024 al 10:00 A.M, and ends on 29-09-2024 at 5:00 P.M. During 
this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematenalized 

form, a3 on the cut-off date (record date) of 15-09-2024 may cast their vote electronically. The e- 
voling module shail be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

(if) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would nol be entitied fo vote ai the 
meeting venue. 

(ii) The shareholders should log on lo the e-voling website www evolingindia com. 

(rv) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

(v) Now enter your User ID 

@ For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID. 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Clent ID. 

¢. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 
Company. 
oR 

Alternatively. if you are registered for CDSL's EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at 
hitps ww cdslindia con from Loain .Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you successfully 
log-in to CDSL'’s EASWVEASIEST e-services. click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to 
cast your vote electronically. 



(vi) 

(vil) 

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login, 

if you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www_.evotingindia com and voted on an 

eariler e-voting of any company, then your existing password isto be used 

(vii) If you are_a first time user follow the steps given below: 

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric “PAN issued by Income Tax 
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical 

shareholders) 

« Shareholders who have not updated their PAN wilh the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the 

sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact 

Company/RTA. 

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mmlyyyy format) 

Bank as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to 

Details login, 

OR Date * if both the details are not recorded with the depository or company 

of Birth please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank 

(DOB) details field as mentioned in instruction (Vv) 

(ix)  Afler entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab. 

(x) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 

However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu 
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly 

note that this password is !o be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other 

company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through COSL 

platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

uimost care to keep your password confidential. 

(xf For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 

(xii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name=> on which you choose to vote. 

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION’ and against the same the option 

"YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent 

to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution, 

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

(xv) Afler selecting the resolution you have decided to vole on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will 

(xvi) 

be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK, else to change your vote, click on 

““CANCEL” and accordingly modity your vote 

Once you “CONFIRM your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 



(xvii) ‘You can also take a print of the voles cast by clicking on "Click here to print” option on the Voting 

page. 

(xvii) if a demat account holder nas forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 

Verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompled by the system 

(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting 

app can be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by 

the mobile app while Remote Voting on your mobile. 

(xx) Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —Remote Voting 

* Non-individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI ete.) and Custodians are required 

to log on to www _evotingindia_com and register |hamselves in the “Corporates” module. 

» A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed 

to helpdesk evoling@cdsiindia.com. 

» After receiving the login delails a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vole on. 

* The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk .evoting@cdslindia.com and on 

approval of the accounts they would be abie to cast their vote. 

* A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attommey (POA) which they have issued in 

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to 

verify the same 

« Alternatively, Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution’ Authority 
letter etc, together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to 
vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; akspintex@gmail.com 
(designated email address by company), if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the 
CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer ta verify the same, 

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the e-Voling System, you may refer the 
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs") anc &-voling manual available al www evotingindia com, 
under help section or wrile an email to helpdesk evotingicdslindia com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder 
(022- 23058738 ) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542). 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. 
Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Fipor, 

Marathon Futurex, Matfatial Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 

or send an email to helpdesk. evotinagcdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR = -e has 
For A.K. SPIN V2* ics! 

ee? ) Re 
PLACE: BHILWARA (P. C. CHHABRA) 
DATE: 30.05.2024 i Din No-0015 tui 

MANAGING RIRBGHOR 

wate tediateceeran 
MOTE ERRY 



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

The following Explanatory Siatemen! sets out all the material facts relating to the Special Business under Item No 3 to 

6 of the accompanying Notice dated 30" May. 2024 

Itern No, 3 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of thé Companies Act, 2013 (tie Act) and the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014 (the Rules), the Company is required i appoint a cost auditor lo audit the cost records of 

Company, On the recommendation of the Audit Committee at its meeting held on 30” May, 2024, the Board hus 

approved the appomment of M/s K.-C. Moondra & Associates, Oost Accountants as the Cost Auditor of the Company 
for the financial year 2024-25 at a remuneration decided between him and Board of directors to be ratified subsequentty 

in accordance io the provisions of the Act and Rule }4of the Rules Accordingly ..the Directors recommend the Ondinary 

Resolution to the Members for their seceptance 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and. their relatives are concerned or interested in the Resolution at 
item No, 4 of the Notice 

Item No.4 & 5 

Keeping in view the Company 5 long term strategic and business objectives, the Company may need additional 
funds. For this purpose, the Company may, from time to time, raise finance from various Banks and/or 
Financial Institutions and/ or any other lending institutions and/or Bodies Corporate and/or such other persons/ 
individuals as may be considered fit, which, together with the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart 
from temporary loans oblained from the Company's bankers in ordinary course of business) may exceed the 
aggregate of the paid-up capital and free reserves of the Company. Pursuant to Section |80(1 ec) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors cannot borrow more than the aggregate amount of the paid-up 
capital of the Company and its free reserves al any time excep! with the consent of the members of the 
Company in a general meeting. 

in order to facilitate securing the borrowing made by the Company. it would be necessary to create charge on 
the assets or whole or part of the undertaking of the Company. Further, Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 provides for the power to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or substantially the whole of 
the undertaking of the Company subject to the approval of members in the General Meeting 

The above proposal is in the interest of the Company and the Board recommends the resolutions a5 set out al 
ltem nos. 4 & 5 for approval by the members of the Company as Special Resolutions. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or thar relatives are in any way concerned with or 
interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolution except to the extent of ther shareholding in the 
Company . if any 

Item No. 6 

On the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and in tems of the provisions of Section 149. | 50, 
152 read with schedule [V and any other applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 20/15. the Board of Directors of the Company on 29" May, 2024 has approved the 
appointment of Mr. Aishwarya Tripathi(DIN: (8751122), and Mrs, Monika Lalwani(DIN: (976%)48) as an 

Independent Director for a term of five consecutive years, subject to the approval of the shareholders and shall not be 
liable to retire by rotation as provided under Section 152/6) of the Companues:Act, 2013 The Company has, m terms of 
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Section 160(1) of the Act, received in whiting a notice from member(s), proposing his candidature for the office of 

Directors. 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors Mr. Aishwarya Tnpathi,(DIN. 08751122), und Mrs. Monika Lalwani,(DIN; 
(9769648) fulfils the conditions specified under Section 149 (6) of the Act. the Companics (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 ond Regulation |6 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Dreclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2()15 for his appomtnrent as an Independent Director of the Company and he is independent 
of the management 

The Company has received declaration from Mr. Aishwarya Trpathi,(DIN: 08751122), ond Mrs. Monika Lalwani(DPN: 
(O7 69648) stating that he meets the enters of Independence as: presenbed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the 

Act. and Regulation |6 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015, consent in 
writing to acl as Director in form DIR-2 pursuant io Rule 8 of Companies (Appoimment & Qualification of Directors) 

Roles, 2014 and intimation in form DIR-8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 
2014, to the effect that he 1s not disqualified under sub-section (2) of Secnon 1f4 of the Compames Act. 2013, 

Requisite Notices under Section 160 of the Act propesing the appoitinent of Mr Aishwarva Tripathi.(DIN: 08751122), 

and Mrs. Monika Lalwani,(DIN; 09769648) have been received by the Company, and consents have been obtained fram 
Mr. Aishwarya Tripathi,(DIN: 08751122), and Mrs. Monika Lalwani,(DIN: 09769648) pursuant to Section 152 of the 

Ast 

Mr. Aishwary Tripathi is CS and MBA in Finance along with postgraduate in Business Administration, currently 
working 35, Assistant Administrative officer and auditor in water resource depariment having experience of 19 vears, 
Keeping in view his qualification and experience. the Board considers that his association as an Independent Director 

of the company would be immense benefil to the Compam 

Mrs, Monika Lalwani is CS, MB. A, CA (fmalist) and presently working as proprietor of M. Lalwani & 
Associates (Ajmer), Monika Lalwani is practicmg Company Secretary; she 1s working on the field af Corporate 
and Taxation Services [rom last 6 vears. 
Keeping in view his qualification and experience, the Board considers that his association as an Independent Director 
infohe company would be immense benefit tothe Company. 

Fire Board recommends the special resolution al item no'6 of this notice for approval of the members 

ye Mr. Aishwarya Tripathi,(DIN: 08751122) and Mrs. Monika Lalwani(DIN: 09769648), being af iipoimee and 
hes relatives, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnet of the Contpany and their relatives are concoried or 
interested. either financially or otherwise. jn the msolution set’ out al lien No ia aia Recta Notice of the 

Annual General Moctune. a 

By order of 
Place: Bhifwara rire soca SMPTE LTu 

Date: 30° Mav, 2024 : "I ete 
ye gee 

st AARATTARY 



ANNEXURE 

PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 {3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015, INFORMATION ABOWT THE DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE 
APPOINTED / RE-APPOINTED IS FURNISHED BELOW, 

S.No. _| Particular Details 
i Name Monika Lalwani 

2, Reason for change viz Appointment appomtment 
3 Date of appointment 30,.05,2024 
4. Brief Profile (In case of appointment) Monika Lalwani is CS, MB. A, CA 

(finalist) and presently working as 
proprietor of M. Lalwani & Associates 
(Ajmer), Monika Lalwani is 
pracicing Company Secretary: she is 
working in the field of Corporate and 

Taxation Services from last 6 years 

5 Disclosure of Relationship between directors (in) Mrs. Momka Lalwani is not related to 
case of appointment of a director) any Director or Kev Managerial 

| Personnel (RMP) of the company 

7 — 

, S.No. Particular | Details 

I. Name Aishwarva Tripathi 

2 Reason for change viz Appointment appointment 
3 Date of appointment 30.05 2024 
4 Brief Profile (In case of appointment) He is C$ and MBA in Finance along 

with uate in Business 
Admunistration,, currently working as 
Assistant Administrative officer and 
auditor in water resource department 
having experience of |9 vears 

Disclosure of Relationship between directors (in 
case of appointment of a director) 

Mr. Aishwarya Tripathi is not related 
to any Director or Key Managerial 
Personnel (RMP) of the company. 



Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

Industry Structure and development 

Fabric Processing (Textile Industry) development continues to be the thrust area and the government is 
commutted to focus and spend on Textile industry development in the country. Large and long term 
investments and new global plavers are expected to enter the Fabric processing industry as there ts huge 
potential for the Textile indusiry development in the counin. There are various factors which act as strong 
drivers for long term sustainable real estate demand in India such as- 

« Continued economic growth: 
Trend change in clothing, 
Young working population 
Rising disposable income, 
Increase Modemiration: 

Opportunities, Threat and Outlook 
The Textile Sector in India has undergone rapid changes in the past few vears, Bhilwara is known as textile 
city due to infrastructure and environment fabric processing industry have good opportunity changes in 
preference and choice of voung generation also provide opportumty. New competitors have entered the core 

area of our operations in recent times. The feht for the market share has intensified with prowing competition. 
This, combined with substantial increase in costs of inputs has neutralized the impact of Government's positive 
policies for Textile sectors. Most of the new plavers, who have come in with the support of large business 
groups, have the financial strength to sustain large scale investments. These players continue to propel the 
compettiion with improved quality of products and services 

Product Wise Performance 
AKSL is one of the leading Process House for Processing of Polyester Fabric and Cotton Fabric in india. The 
Company provides quality processing with complete satisfaction 
To improve the operational and financial performance the company has: 

* Implemented vanous energy -savings initiatives. 
* Introduced new, high value techniques for fabric processing. 

Risks and concerns 

The company is continuously evaluating the risks of getting ito areas where it has no exposure earlier, as 
compared to the nsk of continume to operate in an overcrowded. matured market uniformity in the regulatory 
environment conceming the fabne processing (Textile industry) also the availatnlity of quality manpower, 
market research models and reliable database on industry are concems that need to be addressed for attracting 

FDI inflows in the industry 

Compliance 

The level of compliance 5 Increasing day by dav and anv defaull can attract penal provisions. Your 

company is regularly monitonng and reviews the changes in regulator, framework and also monitonng 

its compliance mechanism so as to ensure that instances of non-compliance do not occur 

internal Control System 
The Company has adequate internal control procedure and systems. intemal control system plays a great role 
in achieving the targets of any organization. Your Company gives top prionty to establish a capable internal 
coriirol svstem. The present intemal control system of the Company is capable of facing the challenges and 
threats arising from the outside environment. a te hs 



The Company ’s internal control system aims to ensure that: 
Laws and regulations are complied with: 
The instructions and directions issued by the Board and Management are compiled and implemented. 
The Company's internal processes are functioning correctly, particularly those implicating the security of 
IES SS5els, 

* Financial information is reliable and generally, contributes to the control over its activities, 10 the 
efficreney of its operations and to the efficrent utilization of ils resources 

« To prevent fraud, irregulanty, misappropriation of Companys resources and early detection thereof 
© The intemal controls are penodically reviewed by the Audit Committee to ensure their effectiveness and 

adequacy 
Human Resources 

The Company believes that the human capital is the key engine for iis growth and competitiveness. It continues 
to focus on HR practices, astems and people development initiatives thal encourage continuous leaming on 
the job and meritocracy and which enhance the orwanization’s capability. The Company's objective going 
forward would be to nurture and harness core management teams and explore outsourcing which will enable 
us to enhance management bandwidth and focus. In this direction we have already successfully outsourced 
our construction activities to “best-in-class” contractors for all qur current and upcoming projects The 
changing business scenano necessitates continuous development of emplovees in terms of skills and 
competencies in line with the Company s requirements. 

Risk management 
Risk management is the identification. assessment and taking pro-active measures to face the impact of various 
risks. Risks may arise from uncertainty in financial markets, project falures, legal liabilines, credit msk. 
accidents, natural causes and disasters ete. The Company has adopted appropriate procedure and policies (o 
safeguard the company agamst business and other risk to mitigate its impact to the extent possible The Risk 
management plans & policres are penodically monitored, revrewed and evaluated and updated [rom time to 
lime. 

Cautionary Statement 
The Management Discussion and Analysis contains certain forward looking statements. These statements 

pertain to the Company's future business prospects and busmess profitability, which are subject to a number 
of asks and uncertainties and the actual results could materially differ from the forward looking statements. 
The nsks and uncertainties relating to these statements include. but are not limited fo, msks and uncertainties, 
fluctuations in earnings, our ability to manage growth, competition, economic growth in Indra, ability to attract 
and retain highly skilled professionals. time and cost over runs on contracts, government policies and actions 
with respect to investments, Fiscal deficits, regulation etc. and other factors which cannot be anticipated. 



To. 

The Members 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 30" Annual Report on the business and operations of the 
Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31. 2024. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY tn Lacs 

Financial Results 2023-24 = = -:2022-23 
Turnover 11723,55 1L1643.27 

Operating Profit before interest, depreciation & tax 1901.05 1640). 77 

Less: Interest 75.99 B44 

Profit Before Depreciation & ‘Tax 1825.06 1556.73, 
Less. Depreciation 687,26 614.23 

| Profit Beforetax a 1137.80 942.50 
“Less: Income Tax (Current) 301.56 284.41 
Profit after tax 836.24 658.09 
LESS: MAT Credit Entitlement - - 

ADD/LESS: Deferred Tax (Current) “B48 -74.32 

Profit after provision for deferred tax 844.73 73241 

Add. Balance brought forward 2534.37 | 1801.96 
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 3379.10 2534.37 

N I ERATION 

The Kev highlights periaining to the business of the company for the vear 2023-24 and period subsequent 
there to have been given hereunder: 

* in view of the resull for the financial year company tumover has been increase and profit is increase 
remarkably. company has been performed very well in this vear and Board of directors are hopeful 
that they will increase the tum over as well as profit even in this recession and stiff competition in the 
processing sector. The directors are fully hopeful to achieve better results in future wears 

DIVIDEND 
With a view to provide a cushion for any financial contingencies in the future and to strengthen the financial 
position of the Company. your Directors have decided not to recommend any dividend for the period under 
review 

POLLUTION CONTROL, 
Your directors have pleasure to report that they going to mstall three stages EMuent Treatment Unit with 
Reverse Osmosis and Effluent Evaporation Plant which 15 very important for pollution control measures, And 
at present in water consis problem it 1s very helpful and necessary for us. Our new ETP and to be installed RO. 
Svstem ts 2 complete solution of water pollution. 



Information under Sub Section (3) (m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Information as per Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board 
of Directors) Rules, 1988 relating to conservation of eneray, technology absorpuon. foreign exchange 
eamings and oulgo are given in Annexure forming part of this report, 

LISTIN HARES 

The Shares of the Company are listed in the following Stock Exchanges:- 
Bombay Stock Exchange Lid. Bomals 
Listing fee has already been paid to the Stock Exchange for the year 2023-24 in ime 

DIRECTORS 

|. Im accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 Shn Tilok Chhabra, director of the company will retire al 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting but being eligible offers themselves for reappointment 

iB D 

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposit from the public within the meaning of Section 73 &76 of 
the Companies Act. 2013 

A IN FER AGENT 

Company has been appointed SEBI Registered Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Lid. New Delhi, as 
Transfer agent for transfer of shares 

DEMAT OF SHARES 

Company has been made an arrangement with NSDL and CDSL to convert physical shares into Demat form. 
So member can convert his/her Shares in to demat form. 

RESERVES 

Your Directors propose to carry Rs. $44.73 Lakhs /- being the profit for the current vear to the Balance Sheet 
during the financial vear ended March 3|_ 2024 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE 
There is no change in the authored and paid up share capital of the company during the vear 
The Authonved Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 12.50,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve crore Fifty Lacs only) 
divided into 1.25 Crore equily shares of Rs. 10/- each ~ 
The Paid up share capital of the Company ts Rs. 5, 03, 17.500 only) divided inte $0, 31,750) equity shares of 
Rs. 10)/- each 

INDUSTRY SCENARIO AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS 
Your company is Public Limited companies engaged, inter-alia, in the area of ManMade Fabne headquartered 
at Bhilwara (Raj.), India and not have any subsidiary company 



THE REPORT 

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company have occurred between 
the cad of the financial vear of the company to which the financial statements relate and the date of this report 

“ANT AN RIAL ORDERS PAS 
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S 
OPERATION IN FUTURE 

No significant and material orders were passed bv the regulators or courts or tribunals which affect the going 
concer status and future operation of the Company 

I. Executive Directors and KMPs: 

(i) At the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on September 30 2023, the 
Members had re-appointed Mr. Sourabh Chhabra (DIN: (00486493) as director of the Company 

(i) Mr. Tilok Chand Chhabra (DIN; 00167401) director is liable to retire by rotation and being 
eligible offer himself for re-appointment as director of the Company 

2. Independent Directors: 

(i) Mr. Sandeep hinger (DIN: 06885495). and Smt Divya Praveen kothan (DIN: 06885490) were 
appointed as the Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 for a term of $ years with 
effect from S$“ June 2019.and Mr. Deepak kanwa (DIN: 08682576) were appointed as the 
Independent Directors under the Companies Act. 2013 fora term of 5 vears with effect from 12" 
Feb 2020) 

(ii) All Independent Directors have grven declarations that they meet the critena of independence as 
lad down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement 

3. Other Key Managerial Persons: 

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Dinesh Porwal as a CFO and Mr Ashish Kumar Bagrecha as 
CS (ACS 34182) as required under section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 on the recommendation of 
the Nomination & Remuneration Commuttee and designated them as the Key Managerial Personnel 



MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
The Board of Directors of the Company met 4 times during the vear on 30 May, 2023, 14" August. 2023, 
14" November, 2023, 13" February, 2024, in respect of which proper notices were given and the proceedings 
were properly recorded, signed and maintained in the Minutes book kept by the Company for the purpose. 
The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period presenbed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Board independence: 

Our definition of “Independence” of Directors is denved from Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock 
Exchanges and Section 1496) of the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the confirmation/disclosures received 
from the Directors and on evaluation of the relationships disclosed. the following Non-Executive Directors 
are Independent in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and Seetion 14% 6) of the Companies Act, 
20) 3:- 

(i) Mr Sandeep hinger (DIN: 06%85405) 
(ii) Mr, Deepak Karwa (DIN: (8682576) 
(ii) = Smit. Divya Praveen Kothan (DEIN: 06885491) 

Annual on by the Board: 

The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises of the following key areas: 
i. Attendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings. 
it Quality of contribution to Board deliberations. 
iii, Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance. 
it, Providing perspectives and feedback going bevond information provided by the management. 
vy. Commitment to shareholder and other stakeholder interests 

The evaluation involves Self-Evaluation bv the Board Member and subsequently assessment by the Board of 
Directors. Member of the Board not participated im the discussion of his/her evaluation 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, itis hereby confirmed 
ing Standands:- 

While preparing the annual accounts of the company for the year ended 31" March 2024 the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures, if any. 

Accounting Policies:- 
The directors have selected such accounting policies and apphed them consistently and reasonable and pradent 
judgment and estimates were made so as ta give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at 
the end of the financial vear and of the profit of the company for that period. 

a 

The Annual accounts have been | on a going concem basis. 

internal Financial Control:- 
The directors had laid down intemal financial controls to be followed bv the company and such internal 
financial control is adequate and operating well. 

AFUE PRE Be 

Compliance: - 
The directors had devised proper svsiem fo ensure compliance with the provision of all applicable laws and 
thal such svstem is adequate and operating effectively. 



Mil TH 

During the vear, in accordance with the Companies Act. 2013, the Board has the following 4 (Three) 
Committees. as follows: 

(1) Audit Committee 
(2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
(3) Stakeholder Relationship commiltee 

(4) Caomporate Social Rese minh Comite 

PARTICULARS OF R_ARRANGEMEN i TED 

PARTIES 

Your Company has entered into transactions with the related parties. which are in tts ordinary course of 
business and are carried out on an arm's length basis. the provisions of Section 18% to Related Party 
‘Transaction are complied 
The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred 
to in sub-section (1) of section [88 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions 
under third proviso thereto shall be diselosed in Form No. AOC-2 As Annexure ILI (Format enclosed), 

E OF CONDUC INSIDER TR 
The Board of Directors has adopted the insider a policy in accordance with requirement of SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 and applicable security laws The insider trading policy of 

ihe company has lays down guidelines & procedures to be followed and disclosure will be made while dealing 
with shares of the company as well as the consequences of the violation. The poliev has been formulated to 
regulate. monitor and ensure reporting of deals bv emplovees and to maintain the highest ethical siandard of 
dealing in company security 

The policy is available on company website 

ILES. 2014; 

None of the employee of your company, who was emploved throughout the financial year, was in receipt of 
femuneralion in aggregate of sixty lakh rupees or more or if emploved for the part of the financial year was in 
receipt of remuneration of five lakh rupees or more per month. 

N HAVE BECOME OR E SUBSIDIARI 
INT WV x 

At the end of the financial vear under review none of the company have become or ceased to be subsidianes, 
join Ventures or assouale companies. and the Company has no subsidiary 

‘The Company has no subsidiary 

Statutory Auditors 

“RESOLVED THAT subject to the proviston of section 139 (1) and other applicable provision, if any, of the 
Companies Aci, 20) 3 and the Rules framed there under, as amended {rom time to time M/s O.P. DAD & CO, 
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. (102330C) statutory auditor of the company shall be subject to 
ratification in every annual general meeting ull the conclusion of the Thirty Third Annual General Meeting to 
be held in in vear 2028 (subject to ratification of their appointment at every AGM held afler this AGM), at 
such feniuneration plus GST. Out-of-pocket, travelling and living expenses, etc.. as may be mutually agreed 
between Board of Directors of the Company and the Auditor” 

ye Due 



Secretarial Auditors 

Anil Soman & Associates Practicing Company Secretary were appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of 
the company for FY, 2023-24, as required under section 204 of the companies act, 2013 and rules made 
there under. The Secretanal Audit Report in form MR-S for the financial vear ended March 31, 24/24 is 
annexed herewith marked as Annexure 1 (o this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

AUDITORS” REPORT 
There is no qualification, reservation of adverse remarks or disclaimer made by the auditors in their report. 

UDIT N 

As per SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Reglation.2015 the Auditor's Cerificate on 
Corporate Governance is enclosed as Annexure to the Board Report, The Auditor's Certificate for FY. 2023- 
24 does not contain anv qualification. reservauon or adverse remarks or disclaimer made by the auditors in 
their report 

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Retum in form MGT-9 for the year ended 3)" March, 
2024 1s annexed herewith as “Annexure I”. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules framed there under, every 
company including tts holding or subsidiary and a foreign company. which fulfills the ertena specified in 
sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act shall comply with the provisions of Section 134 of the Act and its 
rules. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES 

Your Company is conimitted to make.a pusitive contribution to communities where it operates. Pursuant to 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company constituted CSR committee anc formulated CSR 
Pokey as guiding principle for undertaking CSR activinies. The Company's vision on CSR is that the Company 
being a responsible Corporate Citizen would continue te make a serie endeavour for improvement in 
quality of life and betterment of socery through ie CSR related iutiatives. 

During the current year, the Company has imeurred expenditire of Ra. 6.50 Lace against obligation of Rs. 
8.37 Lacs towards CSR activities during the financial year 2023-24 under Schedule Vil of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and CSR policy adopted by the Company, The disclosures of CSR activities pursuant to Section 
134(3 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility] Rules, 
2014 is annexed hereto and form part of this report as Annesure - Il. 

LISTING AGREEMENT 

The Secunty & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on September 2, 2015 issued (Listing Obligation & 
Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 with the anm to consolidate & streamline the provision of listing 
agreement for different segment of capital market to ensure betier enforceability the smd regulation were 
effective from December, 1, 2015 accordingly all listed entity were required (o enter into the listing 
agreement withm six month from the effective date. The company entered ito listing agreement with BSE 
Linuted during August, 2()) 5. 

VIGIL MECHANISM. 

The Company has a vigil mechanism named vigil mechanism whistle blower Policy to deal with instance of 
fraud and mismanagement, if any. The details of the Viel Mechanism Policy are explained in the Corporate 
Govemance Report as Annexure [V 

» < 

we Dee 



Risk management is the identification, assessment and taking pro-active measures to face the impact of various 
risks, Risks may anse from uncertainty in financial markets. project failures, legal liabilines, credit msk, 
accidents, natural causes and disasters etc. The Company has adopted appropnate procedure and policies to 
safeguard the company against business and other nsk to mitigate its impact to the extent possible. The Risk 
management plans & policies are periodically monitored. reviewed and evaluated and updated [rom time to 
lime 

J N 

OF THE COMPANIES ACT. 2013 

The particulars of Loans, guarantees or investments made under Section 186 are furnished hereunder’ 

Details of Loans: 

SL Daieof | Details Amouni Purpose for | Time | Date | Date of | Rate of | Security 
No | making of which the | penod |of BR) SRaf | Interest 

loan | Borrower loan is lo for reqd) 
be utilized | which 

by the it is 
recipiemt | given 

Nil | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil | Nil | Nil Nil Nil 

Details of Investments:- 

SL | Dateof | Details of | Amount | Purpose for which the | Dateof BR | Date of | Expected 
No | invesim = Investee proceeds from SR if rate of 

ent investment is proposed reqd) return 
to be utilized by the 

| reciprent 

| 
Nil | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Details of Guarantee / Security Provided: 

“SL | Date of providing | Details | Amoun | Purpose for | Date of | Dateof | Commission 
No | secunty/guarantee of t which the BR SR fl 

recipi seécuntv/ guarante any.) 

nit e1s propased to 
be utilized by the 

| recipient 
| 

Nil | Nil Ni) Nil «Nil Nil Nl "Nill | 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 

The Company's intemal control svstems are adequate and commensurate with the nature and size of the 
Company and 11 ensures 

* Timely and accurate financial reporting in accordance with applicable accounting standards. 
. Optimurn utilization. efficient moniionng, timely maintenance and safety of its assets. 
. Compliance with applicable laws, regulations and management policies. 

S AND IN IAL RB 

The Company is pleased to report that during the vear under reporting, the indusinal relations were cordial 



Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & 
Administration) Rules, 2014, 

FORM NO. MGT 9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2024 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

of the Company 

LCN LITI17RI1994PLCOO8916 
2; Registration Date 14.10.1994 

3. | Name of the Company | A.K. SPINTEX LIMITED 7 
4. | Catevory/Sub-category | LIMITED COMPANY 

5. | Address of the 

Registered office & 

14 KOM. STONE BILIVYA KALAN 

CHITTOR ROAD, BHILWARA-311001 

contact details RAJASTHAN 

6. | Whether listed YES 

company 

7. | Name, Address & 

contact details of the 

Registrar & Transfer 

Agent. iPanvy. 

Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pvt Lid 

Beetal House, 3rd Floor 

09 Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Centre. 

Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir. 

New Delthi- 110062 

Phone- 91-11-2996 1281-83 

IL. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 

10 % or more of the total tumover of the company shall be stated) 

‘S.No |Name and Description of main [NIC Code of the '% to total turnover of the 
products / services Product'sery ice company 

! Fabric Processing 2650 101% 

2 NA NA NA 
(3 NA. | NA NA 

il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (AB the business activities contnbuting 

1) "6 or more of the total tumover of the company shall be stated) 

SN | Name and Desenption of main | NIC Cede of the % to total lummover of the 
products / services Product/service _comparnry 

| ALA NLA NA 

2 |NA NA NA 

3 INA NA NA 
E 

rg FE Dae 



VI. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 
Category-wise Share Holding 

Category 
of 
Shareholde 

rs 

No, of Shares held at the beginning of the 
vear| As on 31-March-2023 | 

No. of Shares held ‘al the end of the 
vear| As on 31-March-2024] 

Physical | Total % of 

Total 
Shares 

Total ™ of 
Total 

Demat Physical 

Yi 
Change 
during 

the vear 

A. 

Promoters 

(1) Indian 

a) 

Individiall 

HUF 

1313049 | 0 1313049 26,110" 1334353 | 0 1334353 +0.42% 

b) Central 

Govt 

c) State 

Gorvt(s) 

0) () 0 ) iH 0) 0 

it} 

d) Bodies 

Corp. 

2212079 | 0 2212079 43 56% 222602 | 0 2226062 | 444.24 

+1), 28% 
¢) Banks / 

Fl 

0) i 0) 

Li) 

f) Any 

other 

Total 

3525128 rT 3521226 70.05% 
70.73 

S300 15 0) | 35604 15 +4), TU% 

ia 



a) Mutual 

Funds 

i) t) 

0 
bh) Banks / 

Fl 

if if} ii i} a 

c) Central 

Govt 

d) State 

Goviis) 

e) Venture | 

(| 1) i fh nv 

i 

0 0 

t) 

iH 

i) 0 1) 

tH 0 t), \) ) i) () 

72830 75330 83224 85724 170% 70.20% 
0 

0 

425269 269100 771320 



ii) 
Individual 
shareholder 
§ holding 
nominal 

share 

capital in 
excess of 

Rs 2 lakh oT4a34 TOOT 34 SB0583 S80585 11.44% 

c) Others 
(specily) 

() iT) 1 {r 0 () 0) 

Non 
Resident 

6030 6030) 14143 14)43 IES 

Foreign 
Nationals 

() (} () () 0 

Clearing 
| Members 

Ws 103 007 | 0 0 
0, 002%% 

| Trusts 0) i) u 0 0 0 

Other 
Individual 
HUF 

ISG 30056 0, 59% i) 19565 

~0.21% 

Foreign — 
Bodies - D 
RK 

fl 0 i) 

() 

Sub-total 
1208622 ZR 1506622 29.94% | 0) 00 (B)(2):- 

Total 
Public 
Shareholdi 

ng 

(BiB) 
+ (BQ) 1208622 ZUR 204% | 1246485 224830) 1471335 

294, 
AL SUI 

0 

47337) 29800) 3031730 | 

0 0 

LOOM | 4806900 

0 

224850) 

() 

S03 1TH) LOW 

it 

0.00 



A) Shareholding of Prometer- 

SN | Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholding at the end of the year % | 
Name of the year (01,04. 2023) (31.03.2024) change | 

No. of Maof | aot No of % of tolal | %olShares =n 
| Shares total | Shares | Shares Shares of | Pledged / shareh 
| Shares | Pledged / the encumbered — olding 

of the | encumbe company | to total shares during 
compa | red to ihe 

ny =| total year 
shares 

| | Seurabh 000 
Chhabra 255750 | 5.08% | 0 255750 5.08% | 0 

vd Tilok Chand 12.25 40.42 | 

_ Chhabra oie | % 10 637603 | _ 12.679 | % 
3 | Fashion +028 

| Sa Puls 43.96 “> 
Lid 2212079 %% | 0 2226062 44.24% | 0 | 

4 | Avishka O00 | 
_ Chhabra 220500 | 4.38% | 0 220500 4.38% | 0 

% | Mishika 0.00 
Chhabra | 220500) | £5896) 0 220500 4.38% | 0 

7,05 +070 

Total 3525128 %% | 0 _ 3560415 70, 75% | 0 in 

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 

SN Pariiculars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during 

beginning of the vear | the year 

No.of |%oftotal | No.of | % of total 
‘shares | shares of the | shares | shares of the 

| company company 

| | At the beginning of the year 3525128 | 70.05% 3525128 | 70.05% 
Date wise Increase | Decrease in | 35287 | 0.70% | 3560415 | 70.75% 
Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 

incrense / decrease (ec. allotimem 

_Mransfer/bonus! sweatequityetey | | i) 
At the end of the year | 3528128 | 70.05% | 3560415 | 70.075% 

D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders; 
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

S For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding atthe — | Cumulative Shareholding 
N Shareholders beginning during the vear 

of the vear 

No. of %oftotal| No of | % of total 
| shares shares of | shares shares of the 

the compan 
company 

| At the beginning of the year a 

rf TE Te 



1. | LPKALYA 136348 271% | 136848 | 2.71% 
2. | SMT. KAMLA KALYA T4al40 1.31% 76149 151% 
3 | WRIDH] CHAND JAIN 130350 2.3 %0 130330) 2.59% 

4 | ASHISH KALYA $4277 1.07% $4277 1.07% 
S RAHUL KALYA si9ro | 1.03% ~— | $1910 1.03% 
6 | GULAB CHAND JAIN 84.150 | G7% #4. 150 L.67% 
7. | NARBADA DEVIKABRA _ 139900 79% | 39900) 0.79% 
& | NIRMAL KUMAR LADDHA 317 0.64% 31947 0.64% 
| LIFESURE CONSULTANCY PVT.LTD. | 66150 | 3% ‘66150 130% 

10 | KAUSHLIVA KABRA 48405 96% =| 48405 | (0,909 
TOTAL 7.19,786 14.28% | 7,19,786 | 14.28% 
Date wise crease Decrease in shareholding 
during the wear 
‘1. | LP. KALYA (Decrease) | 17793 U.35% [17793 | 0.35% 
2 | KAMLA KALYA (Decrease) 12922 i) 26% 12922 1). 26% 
3. | ASHISH KALYA(Decrease) 2023 0.04% 2023 1.04% 
4. | RAHUL KALYA (Decrease) 14198 28% 14198 L2k% 

5. | MAGANIT SAKET (Increase) 34493 O.68% 34493 0.68% 

6. | KALYANI DEVI AGIWAL (Increase) [33730 0.67% [33730 [067% 
7. | KESHAV GARG (Increase) 27863 (155% 27863 0.55% 

8. | ASHA NARANIWAL 27721 0.54% 27721 (54% 

%. | NIRMAL KUMAR LADDHA(Decrease) | 26139 51% 26139 51% 

S | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding 
N | Shareholders ending during the 

of the year Year 
No. of | of total | No. of “5 of total 
shares shares of | shares shares of the 

the company 
| compan 

At the End of the year 
1. | LPRALYA 118755 2.36% 18755 2.71% 
2. | SMT. KAMLA KALYA 63227 1.25% 63227 1.51% 

3. | WRIDHI CHAND JAIN 01063 1.80% OL063 259% 
4. | ASHISHKALYA ___| $2254 LO4% | 52254 | 1.07% 
5 | RAHUL KALYA 37712 (75% 37712 1.113% 
6. | MAGANIT SAKET 34493 0.68% A939 1.67% 

7. | KALYANI DEVI AGIWAL. 33730) 0.67% 3437350) 0.79% 

8 | KESHAV GARG 27863 0.55% 27863 U.b4% 
9. | LIFESURE CONSULTANCY PVT.LTD. | @6150 1.31% 66150 1.31% 

i0 | ASHA NARANIWAL 27721 53% 2rTzl 0.96% 

TOTAL AT THE END OF VEAR S52,965 10.97% | 552,968 | 10.99% 

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

SN | Shareholding of each Directors and = Shareholding at the © Cumulative Shareholding 
each Key Managerial Personne! beginning during the 

af the year year 

No.of | %oftotal No.of | % of total 
shares shares of shares shares of the 

/ the company 
company 

Ar the beginning of the year . oe 



|. | Tilok Chand Chhabra 7 616299 | 12.24% | 616299 12.24% 
2 | Sourabh Chhabra 255750) 5.08% | 285750) 5.08% 
3. | Prakash Chand ChhabraManaging = | | 

Director Nil Nil Nil | Nu 

4 | Ashish Kumar Bagrecha Company 

Secretary Nil Nil Nil Nil 

5 | Dinesh Porwal CFO ‘i sii nail | ss 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 21304 O42% 21304) 0.42% 
Promoters Shareholding during the | 

year specifying the reasons for 

increase /decrease (c.g, allotment / 

transfer / bonus! sweat equity etc.): 

At the end of the year 

! Tilok Chand Chhabra 637h03 [267% 637603 | 1267" 

2 | Sourabh Chhabra 255750 5.08% | 255750 | 5.08% 
3 Prakash Chand Chhabra Managing 

Director Nil Nil iil | Nil 

4 | Ashish Kumar Bagrecha Company 

Secretary Nil Nil Nil | Nil 

RSE Perel ero Nil Nil Nil | Nil 

F) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including imterest outstanding/accrued but not due for 
payment. 

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total 

excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of | 
the financial year 
i) Principal Amount i) 0) th 0 
ii) Interest due but not paid i) i) ) 0) 
iti) Interest accrued but nol due i i) i) 0 

Total (i+ii+iil) 0 o | 0 0 ii 
| Change in Indebtedness during 
_ the financtal year 
_* Addition 0 i) 0 f) 

* Reduction o 0 Oo 0 
Net Change 0 a | 0 0 

| Indebtedwess at the end of the 
. financial year 

i) Principal Amount ti a 0 i} 

ii) Interest due but not paid 0 th i) 0 
iii) Interest acerved but not due 0 0 | 0 0 
Total (i+ii+ii) : lo a | 0 0 
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XI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL- 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager 
SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount 

Prakash Chand Chhabra 

| Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 196] 

35,350,000 $5,50,000 

ib) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

(c) Profits in liew of salary under 

section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 

1961 

Stock Option 

Pa
 

re
y 

Sweat Equity 
Commission 
- as Yo of profit 
- others, specify... 

Others, please specify 

“
T
a
l
 

_Total(A) 
Ceiling as per the Act 

_55,50.000 $5.50, 000 

EB. Remuneration to other directors 

Name of Directors ‘| Total Amount 
Sandeep 
Hinger 

Divya Praveen 

Kothari 
| Independent Directors 

| Kana 

Fee for attending board 

committee meetings 

20000 20000 20000 OU) 

Commission 

Others, please specify 

Total (1) N.A. NA NA. NLA 

iw
 

Directors 

Fee for attending board 

commiltee meetings 

Commission 

Onhers, please specify 

Total (2) NA NA 

“Total (B)=(142) 
Total Managerial 

| Renumeration 

NLA. NLA 

Overall Ceiling as per the Act 



C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN 
MD/MANAGER/WTD 

SN Particulars of Remuneration = 
| CEO 

Key Managerial Personnel 

is. (CFO | Total 
Gross salary 0 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained 

in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 

1961 _—— 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 

Income-tax Act, 1961 

‘(e) Profits in liew of salary under 

section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 

| 444900 (224000 | 167R200 

| Stock Option 
| Sweat Equity 

12 

|3 

| 4 Commission 
| 

: 
- as % of profit 

others, specify... 

3 Others, please specify i} 

Total 454200 1678200 1224000 

NH. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT! COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

| Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal made, 

| the Description | Penalty / jRD/ if any (give 
Companies Punishment! NCLT/ Details) 

Act Compounding | COURT] 

| fees imposed | 
A. COMPANY 
Penalty | NA NA NA NA. NA 
Punishment | N.A, NA. NA. NA NA, 
Compounding | N.A NA. NLA. NA. NA 
B. DIRECTORS 
Penalty NLA. NLA. NLA. NLA, NA. 

Punishment | N.A. N.A. NA. NLA NA. 
Compounding | “A NA. NA. | NA NA 
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 
Penalty NA NA. NA. NA. NA 
Punishment | NA. N.AL N.A. [NA NLA. 
|Compounding) NA | NA NA NA NA. 
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ANIL SOMANI & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

B-5, Ganpall Complex, Pur Road, Bhilwara, Rajasthan—311001 

Email Id: corporaiesolutions |4e%gmali com, (M) 09166611876 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 

|Purscim! to section 2401) of the Companies Act. 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appourtiinent 

and Remuneration Personne!) Rules: 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

A.KUSPINTES LIMITED, 

4KM Stine, Chitterparh Read, 

Bilin Kalan, Binhwarn 

Rajasthan 311001 

We have conducted the secretarial auclit of the compliance of applicable atanitory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practces by A.K.SPINTEX LIMITED, (hereinafter called the 

company). Secretanal Audit was conducted ina manner that pravided us a masonable basis for 

evalinting the corporate conducts statutory compliance's and expressing Gur opinion thereen. 

Management's Responsibility for Secretarial Compliance's 

The company's Management is responsible for preparatian and maintenance of secretarial 

records and for devising proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of appheable 

laws and regulations. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opmuen on the Secretanal records, Standards, Procedures 

followed by the compeuny with respect to. Secretarial Compliance‘s. 

1 believe that: audit evidence and information obtemed from the Company's management in 

adequate and appropriate forme to proviie a basis for my opinion. 

Opinion 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and renuirns 

filed and other records maintained by the canpany end also the information preoded by thie 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 

aucht, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering 

the financial year ended on 3.1 March, 2024 complied with the stanutory provisions listed 

here-under and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism 

in place to the extent, m the manner and subject to the reporting mace heremafter: 

. =i 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books; font afttreturns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31@ March, 2024 accorling to the 

provisions of r :



{i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

{it} The Securities Contracts. (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the niles made there under; 

(iii) The Depesitories Act, 1996 and the Regulanons and Bye-laws framed there uncer; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to 

the extent of Foregn Direct Investment, Oversees Dorect Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings; 

(vi The following Regulationsand Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (SEB Acr):- 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substannal Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

{bj The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; 

(¢| The Securities and Exchange Board of incia (issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements] 

Regulations, 200%, 

(dj) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchas# Scheie) Guidelines, 1990 N. A. 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of Incia [Issue anc Listing ef Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008; NAL 

{fi The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue andl Share Trasisfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

fa) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares| Regulators, 2009; 

M.A, 

(hj The Securities and! Exchange Board of Inelia! (Fuyhack of Securities! Regulations, L998; NA 

(vi) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1984 

(vii) The EPF & Mise. Provisions Act, 1952: 
ivi) Employees” stuie Insurance Act, 1948; 

(ix) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965; 

(x) The payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institnte of Company Secretaries of Indin 

(ii) SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulanons, Guidelines, Standards, ete. mentioned above except 

1. The Hsted entity has not maintained updated website 2s per Regulation 46 of SEBI 

(LODR) Regulation, 2015 and not adopted all applicable policies prescribed under 

SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015. 

2 The Company has delayed filed annual report for financial year 2022-23 by one day. 

3. The Company has delayed filed Newspaper publication for financial results for the 

We farther report that 

1. ‘The Board of Directors of the Company ia duly constituted with proper balance of 

Execute Directors, Non-Executive Directors and iidependent Directors. The chuunges 

in the composition of the Board of Directors that take-place during the period under 

review were camed out in comphance with the provisions of the Act. 

2. Adeqiaie folice is given to all dirtctors te-schedule the Board Meetings; egende end



detailed notes on agenda were sental leest-seven days in advance, ancd-a system exists 

for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 

tefore the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

3. Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views aré captured 

and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 

commensurate with the size and cperations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 

with applicable laws, rules, regulations and puideiines, 

For Anil Somani & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

PR 1869/2022 

Place: Bluilwara Anil Kumar Samani 

Date: 037 August, 2024 ACS: 36055 

COP: 13379 

UDIN; AOS6055Fr000888258 

This reportis to be read with our letter ofeven date which is annexed as ‘Annewure A’ and forma 

an integral part of this report



Annexure «A 

To, 

The Members 

A.K.SPINTEX LIMITED, 

4 KM Stone, Chittorgarh Road, 

Bilia Kalan, Bhilwara 

Rajasthan 311001 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 

based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the auclit practices and processes as were appropriate to obiain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the seeretarial 

records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 

reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we 

followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion, 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records 

and Books of Accounts of the company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about 

the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events ete, 

5, The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards are the responsibility of management. Our examination was 

limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6, The Secretarial Audit Report és neither an assurance as to future viability of the 

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the company. 

For Anil Somani & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Anil Kumar Somani 

ACS: 36055 

COP: 13379 

Place: Bhitwara 

Date: 03™ August, 2024



Annexure - Il 

FORM NO, AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related pariies 
referred to in sub section (1) of section 18% of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length 
transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1, Deiails of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm s length basis: 

SL. No. | Particulars Details 

a) | Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship = NA 
b) | Nature of contracts‘arrangements/ transaction NA 

c} | Duration of the contracts’arrangements/transaction | NLA 

d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or NLA 

transaction including the value, ifany 

e) Justification for entenng mio such contracts or NA 

arrangements or transactions” 

) Date of approval by the Board UNA 
2) Amount paid as advances. if any NLA 

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in N.A 

General meeting as required under firs! proviso lo sechon 

188 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions al Arm's length basis. 

SL.No, Particulars Details 
st a) Nante (5) of the related party & nature of relationship RCM Consumer 

Product Pvt Ltd 

(Sister Concer) 

b) Nature of contracts’arrangements/tansaction Fabric Processing 

¢) | Duration of the contracts’arrangements/transaction 1/04/24 to 31/03/25 
d) Salient ierms of the contracis or arrangemenis or NA. 

transaction including the value, if anv 
«) Date of approval by the Board 30.05.2024 

N Amount paid as advances, if any NLA. 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

Sir AK 8 SHIN" PINTEX LTD, TLE Pad SPpINTEX LTD 
oo, —_ >) 

PLACE: BHILWARA nc Cc. - CHHABRA] 
DATED: 30.05.2024 



CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(As per clause C of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 read with regulation 34{3} of 

the said Listing Regulations}. 

Te 
The Members, 
A.K.SPINTEX LIMITED, 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received 
from the Directors of A-K.SPINTEX LIMITED heving CIN: LI7EI7RIL994PLOO08916 -and 
having registered office at 14 KM Stone, Chittorgarh Road, Bilia Kalan, Bhilwara Rajasthan, 
SLLO01, India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Compeny), produced béfore us by the 
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Reputation 34(3) 
read with Schedule V Pera-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities: Exchange Beard of India 
HlListing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the verifications 
fincluding Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.oticagovin) as 
considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & irs officers, we 
hereby certify that none of the Directore on the Board of the Company as ateted below for 
the Financial Year ¢ocding-on Sl March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continuing-as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority 

SL. Name of Director DIN Date of | 

No, appointment /Reappointment 
in Company 

E Mr. Prakash Chend Chhabra 001355631 OT /OS/2007 

2. Mr. Tilok Chand Chhabra OO167401 07/02/2008 

a: Mr. Saurabh Chhabra 00488493 07 (02/2008 

4. | Mrs. Divya Praveen Kothan 06885490 05/06/2019 

3. Mr. Sandeep Hingar OnBR 49S 05/06/2019 

&. Mr. Deepak Karwa 08682576 i2/O2/ 2020 

Ensuring the eligitility for the appointment / contirnjurty of every Director on the Board 1s 
the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these based on cur verification. This certificate is nether en assurance az to the 
fiiture viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company, 

Fer Anil Somani & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

(CS Anil Kumar Someni 
ACS: 36055 
COP: 13379 

Date: 03" August, 2024 UDIN: AQSG0ESFO00B882580 

Place: Bhilwara 
Se 
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Annexure IV 

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
A.K. SPINTEX LIMITED 

1. PREFACE 

Ll. Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires every listed company and such class or classes of 
companies, as may be prescribed to establish a vigil mechanism for the directors and emplovees to report 
genuine concerns in such manner as may be prescribed. The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 
Directors and Senior Management Executives (“the Code™), which lavs down the principles and standards that 
should govern the actions of the Company and its emplovees. Any actual of potential violation of the Code. 
howsoever insignificant or perceived as such, would be a matter of serious concern for the Company. Such a 
vigil mechanism shall provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such 
mechanism and also make provision (or direct access to the chairperson of the Audit Committee in. appropnate 
or exceptional cases 
12 Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement between listed companies and the Stock Exchanges, inter alia, 
provides for a non-mandatory requirement for all listed companies to establish a mechanism called “Whistle 
Blower Policy’ for emplovees to report to the management instances of unethical behavior. actual or 
suspected, fraud or violation of the company’s Code of Conduct 
1.3. Under these circumsianees, AK. Spintes Limited, being a Lisied Company proposes to establish a 
Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism and to formulate a policy for the same 

2. POLICY OBJECTIVES 
2.1L. The Company is-committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of 
business operations. To maintain these standards, the Company encourages its employees who have 
concems about suspected misconduct to come forward and express these concems without fear of 
punishment or unfair treatment. A Viel (Whistle Blower) mechanism provides a channel to the emplovees 
and Directors to report to the management concerts about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or 
violation of the Codes of conduct or policy The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimizatron of emplovees and Directors to avail of (he mechanism and also provide for direct access to the 
Chairman! CEQ! Chairman of the Audi Committee in exceptional cases 
2.2. This neither releases emplovees fron their duty ef confidentiality un the course of the work nor can tt 
be used as a route for raising malicious or unfounded allegations against people in authority and / or 
colleagues in general 

3. SCOPE OF THE POLICY 
3.1. This Policy covers maipractices and events which have taken place / suspected to have taken place, mususe 
or abuse of authority. fraud or suspected fraud. violation of company rules, mantpulations, negligence causing 
danger to public health and safety, misappropriation of monies, and other matters or achvity on account of 
which the interest of the Company is affected and formally reported by whistle blowers concerning its 
emplovees, 

DEFINITIONS 
4.1, “Alleged wrongful conduct™ shall mean violation of law, infringement of Company ‘s rules, 
mIsaAppropr ation of monies. actual or suspected fraud, substantial and specific danger to public health and 

safety or abuse of authority” 
42 “Audit Commitiee™ means a Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company in 
accordance guidelines of Listing Agreement and Compamies Act, 2013, 
4.3. "Board™ means the Board of Directors of the Company 
4.4. “Company” means the A.K. SPINTEX LIMITED and all its offices 
4.5, “Code” means Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Executives adopted A_K. 
SPINTEX LIMITED. o% 
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4,4. “Employee” means all the present emplovees and whole time Directors of the Company. 
4.7. “Protected Disclosure” means a concem raised by an employee or group of employees of the Company. 
through 9 written communication and made im good farth which discloses or demonstrates information about 
an unethical or improper activity under the tile “SCOPE OF THE POLICY™ with respect to the Company. It 
should be factual and not speculative or im the nature of an interpretation / concluston and should contam os 
much specific information as possible to allow for proper assessment of the nature and extent of the concern. 
4.8, “Subject” means 4 person or group of persons against or in relation to whom a Protected Disclosure is 
made or evidence gathered during the course of an investigation. 
4.9. “Vigilance and Ethics Officer” means an officer appointed to receive protected disclosures from 
whistle blowers, maintaining records thereof, placing the same before the Audit Committee for its disposal 
and informing the Whistle Blower the result thereof, 
4.10, “Whistle Blower” is an employee or group of employees who make a Protected Disclosure under this 
Policy and also referred in this policy as complainant 

5, ELIGIBILITY 
All Emplovees of the Company are eligible to make Protected Disclosures under the Policy in relation to 
matters concerming the Company. 

6 RECEIPT AND DISPOSAL OF PROTECTED DISCLOSURES 
6,1. All Protected Disclosures should be reported m wnting by the complainant as soon as possible after the 
Whistle Blower becomes aware of the same so as to ensure a clear understanding of the issues raised and 
should enther be typed or written in a legible handwriting in English and Hindi 
6.2. The Protected Disclosure should be submitted ina closed and secured envelope and should be super 
scnbed as “Protected disclosure under the Whistie Blower pohev™ Alternatively, the same can also be sent 
through email with the subject “Protected disclosure under the Whistle Blower policy” If the complaint ts not 
super scribed and closed as mentioned above, it will not be possible for the Audit Committes to protect the 
complainant and the protected disclosure will be deal with asif'a normal disclosure. In order to protect identity 
of the complainant, the Vigilance and Ethics Officer will not issue any acknowledgement to the complainants 
and they are advised neither to write their name / address on the envelope nor enter into any further 
correspondence with the Vigilance and Ethics Officer. The Vigilance Officer shall assure thai in case anv 
further clarification is required he will get in touch with the complainant. 
6.3. The Protected Disclosure should be forwarded under a covering letter signed by the complamant The 
Vigilance Officer and ethics / Chairman of the Audit Committee’ MD! Chairman as the case may be. shall 
detach the covenng letter bearing the idenuty of the Whistle Blower and process only the Protected Disclosure 
6.4, All Protected Disclosures should be addressed to the Vigilance and ethics Officer of the Company or to 
the Chairman of the Audit Committee’) MD/ Chairman in exceptional cases The contact details of the 
Vigilance Officer are as under:- 

Name and Address — Ashish Kumar Bagrecha 
AK. SPINTEX LIMITED 
14 K.M. Stone, Biliva Kalan 
Chitior Road, Bhitwara-3 11001 

6.5. Protected Disclosure against the Vigilance and Ettcs Officer should be addressed to the Chairman of the 
Compam and the Protected Disclosure against the Chairman and Managing director of the Company should 
be addressed to the Chairman of the Audit Committee The contact details of the Chairman & Director and 

the Chairman of the Audit Committee are as under 

Name and Address of Chairman and Director - Shri Prakash Chand chhabra 
AK. SPINTEX LIMITED 
14,K_M. Stone, Bilrva Kalan 
Chittor Road, Bhilwara-3 11.00] 

“aie Dain



Ema! ahspintess_ malcom 

Name and Address of the — Shri Sandeep hinger 
Charman of the Audi Committee 1%. Bhopal Gany. 

Mahaveer Mohalla Bhilwara-31 1001 

Email akspintexia gmail com 

6.6. On recerpt of the protected disclosure the Vigilance and Ethics Officer / Chairman & Managing Director 
/ Chairman of the Audit Commuttee. as the case may be. shall make a record of the Protected Disclosure and 
also ascertain from the complainant whether he was the person who made the protected disclosure or not. He 
shall also carry oul impal investigation ether himself or by involving anv other Officer of the Company or an 
outside agency before referring the matter to the Audi Commitee of the Company for further appropnate 
investigation and needful action. The record will include: 
a) Brief facts; 
b) Whether the same Protected Disclosure was raised previously by anvone, and if'so, the outcome thereof, 
¢) Whether the same Protected Disclosure was raised previously on the same subject. 
d) Details of actions taken by Vigilance and Ethics Officer / Chairman & Manaving Director for processing 
the complaint 
2) Findings of the Audit Committee 
f) The recommendations of the Audit Commuttee’ other action(s) 
6.7 The Audi Committee. if deems fit, may call for further information or particulars from the complainant 

7. INVESTIGATION 

7.1. All protected disclosures under this policy will be recorded and thoroughly investigated. The Audit 
Committee may investigate and may al its discretion consider involving any other Officer of the Company 
and! or an outside ayeney for the purpose of investigation 
7.2. The decision Ww conduct an investigation is by itself not an accusation and 1s to be treated as a neutral 
fact finding process, 

7,3, Subject(s) will normally be informed in woting of the allegations at the outset of a formal investigation 
and have opportunities for providing thetr inputs during the investigation 
7.4. Subject(s) shall have a duty to co-operate with the Audit Committee or any of the Officers appointed bv 
it in this regard. 
75 Subject(s) have a night to consult with a person or persons of their choice, other than the Vigilance and 
Ethics Officer / Investigators and/or members of the Audit Committee and/or the Whistle Blower 

7.6. Subject(s) have a responsibility not to interfere with the investigation. Evidence shall not be withheld, 
destroved or tampered with and witness shall not be influenced, coached, threatened or intimidated by the 
subject(s) 
7.7. Unless there are compelling reasons not to do so, subject(s) will be given the opportunity to respond to 
matenal findings contained in the investigation report. No allegation of wrong dome againsi a subject(s) shall 
be considered as maintainable unless there ts good evidence in support of the allegation. 
7.8. Subject(s) have a night to be informed of the outcome of the investigations. If allegations are not 

sustained, the Subject should be consulted as to whether public disclosure of the mvestigation results would 
be in the best interest of the Subject and the Company 
7% The investigation shall be completed normally within 90 davs of the receipt of Ihe protected disclosure 
and is extendable by such penod as the Audit Committee deems fit 

a. DECISION AND REPORTING 
8.1. If an investigation leads the Vigilance and Ethics Officer ‘ Chairman of the Audit Committee to conclude 
that an improper or unethical act has been committed, the Vigilance and Ethics Officer / Chairman of the 
Audit Commuttee shall recommend to the management of the Company to take such disciplinary or corrective 

ee a 



action as he may deem fil. [is clarified that any disciplinary or corrective action initiated against the Subject 
as a result of the findings of an investigation pursuant to this Policy shall adhere 16 the applicable personnel 
or staff conduet and disciplinary procedures. 
%2 The Vigilance and Ethics Officer shall submit a report te the Chairman of the Audit Committee on a 
regular basis about all Protected Disclosures referred to him/her since the last report together with the results 
of investigations. if anv. 
$8.3. In case the Subject is the Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee after examining the Protected Disclosure shall forward the protected disclosure to other members 
of the Audit Committee if deemed fit. The Audit Committee shall appropriately and expeditiously 
investigate the Protected Disclosure 
$.4. If the report of investigation is not to the satisfaction of the complamant, the complainant has the right 
io report the event to the appropriate legal or invesiigating agency 
#.5. A complainant who makes false allegations-of unethical & improper practices or about alleged wronglul 
conduct of the subject to the Vigilance and Ethies Officer or the Audit Committee shall be subject to 
appropriate disciplinary action im accordance with the rules, procedures and policies of the Company 

% SECRECY / CONFIDENTIALITY 
© 1 The complainant, Vigilance and Ethics Officer, Members of Audit Committee. the Subject 

and everybody involved tn the process shall 
9 1.1. Maintain confidentiality of all matters under this Policy 
9.1.2 Discuss onl to the extent or with those persons as required under this policy for completing the 
process of investigations. 
9.1.3, Not keep the papers unattended anywhere at any time 
9.1.4. Keep the electrome mails) files under password 

10. PROTECTION 

10.1, No unfair treatment will be meted out to a Whistle Blower bv wirtue of his! her having reported a 
Protected Disclosure under this policy. The company, as a policy, condemns any kind of discrimination, 
harassment, victimization or any other unfair employment practice bene adopted against Whistle Blowers 
Complete protection will. therefore. be given lo Whistle Blowers against any unfair practice like retaliation, 
threat or intimidation of termination / suspension of service, disciplinary action, transfer, demotion, refusal of 
promotion or the like including any direct or indirect use of authority to obstruct the Whistle Blower’s nght 
fo. continue to perform his duties / functions including making further Protected Disclosure. The company will 
lake steps to minimize difficulties: which the Whistle Blower may expertence as a resull of making the 
Protected Disclosure. Thus if the Whistle Blower is required to give evidence in criminal or disciplinary 
proceedings, the Company will arrange for the Whistle Blower to receive advice about the procedure, etc 
10.2. A Whistle Blower may report any violation of the above clause to the Charman of the Audit 
Committee, who shall investigate into the same and recommend suitable action to the management 
10.3. The identity of the Whistle Blower shall be kept confidential to the extent possible and permitted under 
law, The identity of the complainant will not be revealed unless he himself has made either his details public 
or disclosed his identity to anv other office or authonty. In the event of the idenvty of the complainant being 
disclosed, the Audit Commitee is authonzed to mutate appropnale action as per extant regulations against 
the person or agency making such disclosure. The identity of the Whistle Blower. if known, shall remain 
confidential 10 those persons directly involved in applying this policy. unless the issue requires investigation 
by law enforcement agencies, in which case members of the organization are subject to subpoena 
10.4 Anw other Emplovee assistiny in (he said investigation shall also be protected to the same extent as the 
Whistle Blower 

10.5, Provided however that the complainant before making a complaint has reasonable belief that an issue 
exists and he has acted in good faith, Anv complain not made in good faith as assessed as such by the Audit 
Committee shall be viewed seriously and the complainant shall be subject to disciplinary action as per the 
Rules / certified standing orders of the Company. This policy does not protect an employee from an adverse 
action taken independent of his disclosure of unethical and improper practice etc unrelated to a disclosure 

made pursuant to this policy. yogis 



I). ACCESS TO CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
11.1. The Whistle Blower shall have right to access Chairman of the Audit Committee directly in 
exceptional cases and the Chairman of the Audit Cammitiee is authonzed to prescribe suitable directions in 
this regard 

12, COMMUNICATION 
12.1. A whistle Blower policy cannot be effective unless itis properly communicated to emplovees 
Emplovees shall be informed through by publishing in notice board and the website of the company 

13, RETENTION OF DOCUMENTS 
13.1. All Protected disclosures m whiting or documented along with the results of Investigation relating 
thereto, shall be retained by the Company for a penod of 7 (seven) years or such other penod as specified by 
any other jaw in force, whichever ts more. 

14. ADMINISTRATION AND REVIEW OF THE POLICY 

14.1. The Chairman & Managing Director shall be responsible for the administration, interpretation, 
application and review of this policy. The Chief Executive Officer also shall be empowered to bring about 
necessary changes to this Policy, if required at anv stage with the concurrence of the Audit Committee 

15. AMENDMENT 
13.1. The Company reserves its nght to amend or modify this Policy in whole or in part, at anv time without 

assigning any reason whatsoever However, no such amendment or modification will be binding on the 
Employees and Directors unless the same 1s notified to them im writing 



AUDITOR'S RT ON CO RATE GOVERNANCE 

The Board of Directors 

A.K. Spintex Limited 

Bhilwara 

We have reviewed the implementation of Corporate Governance procedures by the company during the year 
ended 31" March 2024 with the records and documents maintained by the company furnished to us for our 
review and the report on Corporate Governance as approved by the Board of Directors. 

The Company's conditions of Corporate Governance are the responsibility of the Management, Our 
examination is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the Company. 

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion the 
Company has complied in all material respects with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 
Clauses 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange. 

We further state that our examination of such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of 
the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has concluded the affairs of the 
Company. 

FOR: O.P. DAD & Co, 
CHARTERED ACCOUS 

ABHISHEK DAD 
PARTNER 

PLACE: BHILWARA 
DATED: 30 MAY,2024 

aE Dan



CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION TO THE BOARD 

(Under Clause 49(V) of Listing Agreement) 

To the Board of Directors 

AK. SPINTEX LTD, 

a Ihave reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the vear 2023-24 and that to 
the best of our knowledge and belief. 

* These statements do nol contain any malenally untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
stalements that might be misleading: 

e These statements together present a true and fair yew of the Bank's affairs and are im compliance with 
existing accounting standards. applicable laws and regulations, 

ly. There are, to the best cf our knowledge and belief. no uransactions entered into by the Bank during 
the vear 2023-24 which are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the Bank”s code of conduct: 

ce Weaccept responsibility for establishing and mamtaining intemal controls and that we have evaluated 
the effectiveness of the intemal control systems of the Bank and we have disclosed to the auditors and 
the Audi Committee, deficiencies in the desizn or operation of the intemal control, if any, of which 
we are aware of and the steps we have taken or propose to. take to rectify these deficiencies. 

d. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee - 

* Significant changes in intemal control over the financial reporting during the year 2023-24, 

* Significant chanves in accounting policies during the year 2023-24 and that the same have been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements: and 

® Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if anv. 
of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Bank's intemal control system 



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2023-24 
(As required under LODR Regulation, 2015 entered into with Stock Exchange) 

1, Company's Philosophy on Code of Governance 
The Companv’s philosoply has always been to atta the highest levels of transparency, faimess, 
commitment to values, accountability and equiv, irvall Cacts of ity operations, and in all its inter-action with 
its stakeholders, including shareholders, employees, government agencies and lenders, lt always believes 
that all its operations and actions must serve the underlying goal of enhancing overall shareholder value, 
over a sustained peried of time. In addition to complying with the statutory requirement, effective 
governance svstens and practices towards improving transparency, disclosures, intemal controls and 
promotion of ethies at work-place have been institulionalized. Hence, adapting to the SEB! recommended 
Corporate Governance practices were mosily an exercise on re-confirming existing practices of the 
Company except for some specific changes to meet the SEBI recommendations. 

2 Board Composition and Particulars of Director 

(i) The Board of Directors of the company as on March 31, 2024 consisted of 

« Executive Shn Prakash Chand Chhabra 
Sho Tilok Chand Chhabra 

Shri Sourabh Chhabra 

* WNon- Executive(Independent) Shri Sandeep hinger 
Shri Deepak Karwa 
Smt. Diva Praveen Kothan (Woman) 

(i) Attendance at Board Meetings during the year and last Annual General Meeting 

4+ Board Meeting of the Board were held during the year 

The dates on which the meeting held were as follows: 30" May.2023. .14" August.2023, 14" 
November 2023, 13" February, 2024 

The last Annual General Meeting was held on 30" September 20123 

“Name of Director No. of Bourd Meeting attended | Whether attended Last AGM | 
Shri P_C. Chhabra 4 Yes 

_Shn TC Chhabra 4 Yes 

Shri Saurabh Chhabra 4 Yes 
| Shn Sandeep Hinger 4 Yes 
Shn Deepak Karwa 4 Yes 

Smt Divwa Praveen Kothan 4 Yes 

(fi) Disclosure Regarding Appointment and Reappointment of Director 
As per the provision of Companies Act 2013 Mr. Tilok Chand Chhabra will retire in the ensuing 
AGM and being eligible and seeking re-appomimentThe Board recommends his reappointment 
Shri Tilok Chand Chhabra, Son of Shn Mohan Lal Chhabra, aged 66 vears, an Indian National, 
residing at B-382, Shastri Nagar. Bhilwara-311001 He is Bachelor of Commerce. He is having 
more than 35 years experience in filed of Spinning, Treading and Weaving Business. 
Detls of the Sho Tilok Chand Chhabra Directorship in other lodians Companies are as under 

Other Directorship | Position held = 
Fashion Suitings Pvt. Lid | Director 
Citiline Tex Fab Pvt. Lid Director 

Welplan lofrastruciures Pvt. Ltd Director 

Acme Care International Pvt. Lid. Director. - 



The Companies Act, 20/3 provides for the appomtment of Independent Directors Sub Section (10) of 
Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013 (effective April, 1, 2014) provides that Independent Directors shall 
hold office for a term of Five consecutive years on the Board of a company and shall be eligible for 
reappointment on the passing of a special resolution by the shareholder of the company. Accordingly all 
the Independent Directors were appomted by the shareholders erther at general meeting or through postal 
ballot as required under section 149(10). 
Further section 14% 1 |) states that no Independent Director shall be eligible 1 serve on the board for more 
than two conseculive terms of five years. Section 14913) stats that the provision of retirement by rotation 
as defined under sub section (6) and (7) of seetion 152 of the Act, shall not apply to Independent Directors. 
None of Independent Director will retire in ensuing AGM 

(iv) Independent Directors Meeting 
Schedule IV of the Companies Act. 2013 and the rules under 1 mandate the Independent Directors and 
Member of the Management. [1 is recommended that all the Independent Directors were present in the 
meeting. These meeting are expected to review the performance of non-independent director and the Board 
as a Whole os well as performance of chairman of the Board ‘Taking into account views of executive 
directors and non-executive directors: access the quality quantity and timeliness of ihe flow of information 
between the management and the board thal is necessary to effectively and reasonably perform its duty 

fv) Code Of Conduct 

In comphance with regulation 26 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulation, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 the company has framed and adopted the code of conduct 
and ethics “the code” The Code is applicable to the Board Members and senior Management of the 
company and is posted on our website www_akspintex.com. The Board Members and Senior Management 
personnel affirm compliance to the code of conduct 

3. Audit Committee 

a The Audit Commuttee of the Company has been constituted in line with provisions of Clause 
49 of the Listing Agreement read with Section 177 and 149 (6) of the Compames Act.2013. 

b The composition of the Audit Committee and particulars of meetings attended bv the members 
of the Audit Committee are as below 

Name of Member Designation No. of Meetings attended during 
the year 2023-24 

Shn_ Sandeep hinger Chairman 4 
Shn Deepak Karwa Member 4 

_Shn Prakash Chand Chhabra | Member i= 4 

¢ Four Audit committees meetings were held during 2023-2024. The dates on which the said 
meetines were held are as follows: 36" May 2023, 14" August 2023_ 14 November 2025 and 
13" February 2024 

d Audit Committee Report for the year ended 31° March, 2024 
The composition of Audit Committee is according to the definition laid down in the audit committee 
charter section (49 of ihe Companies Act. 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obhyation and 
Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015. 

The management is responsible for the company's intemal contro! over financial reporting and the 
financial reporting process. The Independent Auditor is responsible for performing and Independent 
Audit of the company's financial statement in accordance with generally accepted auditing principles 
and for issuimg a report thereon, The committees’ responsibility is to monitor these processes, The 

committee is also responsible for overseeing the processes related to financial reporting and 
information dissemination. This 1s to ensure thar the financial statements are true. fair, sulTicient and 
credible. In addition the committee recommends to the board the remuneration appointment and terms 
of appointment of the company's internal and independent auditors 
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In this contest, the committee discussed the overall scope and plans for the independent with the 
company’s auditors. The management shared the company’s financial statement prepared in 
accordance with the IND-AS and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the 
Intemational Accounting Standards Board with the committee 

Based on committee’s discussion with the management and the auditors, its review of representation of 
the management and the reports of the auditors the committee has recommended following to the 
board 

(i) The audited financial statement prepared in accordance with the IND-AS of AKSL for the FY 
2023-24 is accepted by the board as a true and fair statement of the financial status of the 
company. 

(1) The appointment of M/s Bal Mukund Kabra & Co. as the internal auditor of the company for the 
F.-Y. 2024-25 to review various operation of the company. And determination and approval of 
fees pavable to them. 

(iii) The appointment of M/s Anil Somani & Associales company secretaries as Secretanal Auditor 
for the FY. 2024-25 to conduct the secretanal audit.as prescribed under section 24 and other 
applicable section of Companies Act, 2013. 

(iv) The appomtment of MS /K.C. Moondra & Associates as the cost audnor of the company for the 
FY 2024-25 to review vanous operation of the company. And determination and approval of 
fees pavable to them 

4. Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

(1) Remuneration Committee is (here to formulate and recommend io the Board compensation / 
remuneration structure for managing Whole time directors Non-Executive directors are at present 
not paid commission 

(0) = The following is the constitution of the committe” 

Name of the Member Designation Nature of Directorship 
Shn Deepak Karwa Chairman Independent Director 
Sho Sandeep Hinger Member Independent Director 
Shri Tilok Chand Chhabra Member Non-Independenit Director 

Details of Remuneration pad to Managing Directors: - 
(a) Executive’ Whole - time Director 

Details Managing Director Shri Prakash Chand Chhabra 
Basic Salary $,00,000 POM 

Perquasite NIL 
Total 5.1h,00K) PM 

(iii) The company currently does not have any stock option scheme 
(iv) None of the non-execuuve directors has anv pecuniary relationship or transaction with the 

company 

5, Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
(i) The Company has constituted a Stakeholder Relationship Committee of Directors to look into 

transfer and transmission of shares, issue of duplicate share certificate consolidation and 
subdivision of shares and investors enievances. This committee particularily looks into the 

investor's enevances and oversees the performance of in-house share department and to ensure 
prompt and efficient investors” services. 

(ii) The following is the constitution of the committee: 

_Name of the Director Designation | Nature of Directorship 
Shri Deepak Karwa _ (Chairman Independent Director 
Shri Saurabh Chhabra Member Non-independent Duector 

Sot Divya Praveen Kothan | Member | Independent Director (Woman) 



6, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

(i) The Company has constituted a Corporate Soaal Responsibility Committee of Directors to 
manage CSE activites ¢ffecuvely and efficiently 

The following is the constitution of the committee: 

_ Name of the Director Designation | Nature of Directorship 
Shn Deepak Karwa Chairman Independent Director 
Shn Saurabh Chhabra Member Non-Independent Director 
Smt Divya Praveen Kothan Member Independent Director (Woman) 

Your Company is committed to make o positive contribution to communities where i operates. Pursuant to Seeron 135 
of the Companies Act 213, the Company constituted CSR committee and formulaied CSR Policy as guiding principle 
for undertaking CSR activities The Compari's vision on CSR is that the Company being a responsible Corporate 
Citizen would continue to make a serious endeavour for improvenrent in qualoty of lile and betterment of society through 
its CSE relaied inmatives. 

During the current vear, the Company has-incured expenditure of Ry. 8.50 Lacs againstoblicnton of Rs, #37 Lacs 
towards CSR activitics during the financial year 2023-24 under Schedule W1l of the Companies Act. 2013 and CSR 
policy adopted by the Company. The disclosures of CSR activities pursuant to Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule & of Companies (Corporate Social Kesponsibility) Rules, 2014 is annexed hereto and form pari of 
this repon as Annexure — II. 

in) CEO/CFO Certification to the Board 
As required by SEBI (Listing Obhpation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 the CEO/CFO 
Certification ts provided in this report 

(iii) Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance 

As per SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Reglation.2015 the Auditor's Certificate on 
Corporme Governance is enclosed as Annexure to the Board Report, The Auditor's Certificate for FV 
2123-24 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimer made by the 
audiors in ther report 

(iv) Prevention of Insider Trading 

The Board of Directors has adopted the insider trading policy in accordance with requrement of SEBI 
(Prohibinon of Insider Trading) Regulation. 201.5 and applicable security lows. The insider trading policy 
of the company has lavs down guidelines & procedures to be followed and disclosure will be made while 
dealing with shares of the company as well as the consequences of the violation. The policy has been 
formulated to regulate, monitor and ensure report, of deals bv emplovees and to manta the highest 
ethical standard of dealing in company security 

The policy ts available on company website. 

iv) Detail of non-compliance 

No penalty has been imposed bv any stock exchange. SEBI or SEC nor has there been any instance of 
non-compliance with anv legal requirement or on matter relating to capital marked in FY 2023-24 

(vi) GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
(i)  Betails of location and time of holding the last three AGMs 

| Detail of Meeting | Date of Meeting | Time of Meeting | Venue of the Meeting 
27" AGM-2020 | 30.09.2021 | A.K. SPINTEX LIMITED 
28 AGM-202)__ | 30.09.2022 | ThL00 AM 14 KM. Stone, Chittorgarh Road, Bilta 
20" AGM-2022 | 30.09.2023 Kalan. Bhilwara-31 1001 ( RA}) 

ti} During the financial year under review, no fesoluitondamve been passed by postal ballot



(i) DISCLOSURE 

{t) During the under review, there were no matenally significant related party transaction with 
your Company's, promoter’s, the director or the management. their subsidiaries or relatives 
etc, that may have potential conflict with the interes! ofyvour Company at large 

(ii) Your company has complied with all the statutory requirements comprised in the Listing 
Agreement Regulation/Guidelines/Rules of the Stock Exchange’ SEBI/ other statutory 
authorities. 

(ii) There were no instances of non-compliance by vour Company nor have any penalties, strictures 
been imposed by Stock Exchanges or SEB! or any statutory authority during the last four year 

(ii) MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
The unaudited ‘sudited quarterly and half-vearly are sent to all the Stock Exchange, where the 
shares of your Company are listed The results are normally published in the “Nafa 
Nuksaan/Business Remedies” in Hindi and in “Financial Express” English newspaper. The annual 
results are posted to all the shareholders. 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

(1) Annual General Meeting 
Date & Time 
Venue 

3) 09-2024 & 41.00. A.M. 
14 KM. Stone, Chittorgarh Road ,Bilia Kalan, 
Bhilwara-3 1 L001 ( Rajasthan) 

(11) Financial Period I" April 2023 to 31" March 2024 

(tii) Date of Book Closure 23" September 2024 to 30" September 2024 

(1v) Listing Fees The listing fees for the financial veur 2023-24 have been 
paid to Bombay Stock Exchange, where Your Company 
equity shares are listed 

(v) Lasting on Stock Exchange in India (1) Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 

(vi) Financial Calendar for the penod Apnt 1, 
2023 to March 31, 2024 

First Quarterly Results By Aupust 20123 
Second Quarterly Resulis By November 2023 
Third Quarterly Result By February 2024 
Audited Results By May 2024 

(vil) Registered Office 14 KM. Stone. Chittorgarh Road_Bilia Kalan. 
Bhilwara-31 100] ( Rajasthan) 



(vii) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31" March, 2024 

No. of Equity Shares held =| No.of Shareholders | % of Shareholders | No. of Shares held “oe of Share 
holding 

Up to 5000 3193 89.99 317293 6.31 

5001 to 10000 208 5.87 159872 3.18 

| LO00T to 20000 42 231 114556 2.28 

20001 to 30000 15 42 38950 077 

30001 to 40000 10 0.28 35573 0.7} 

40001 to 50000 6 0.17 28160 0.56 

S001 to 100000 10 O28 69112 [37 

100001 to above 5 0.14 61081 12) 

21400) to above 19 O54 4207148 83.6! 

Total §329 100,00 50,31, 750 100.00 

(ix) Shareholding Pattern as on 31" March, 2023 

Categories No. of Shares % of issued Share Capital 

Promoters 3560415 70.76 

Foreign Institutional Investors - : 

Financial Institution * = 

Mutual Funds and UTI > - 

Bodies Corporate $5724 170 

Forergn Companies = - 

National zed and other banks - = 

Resident Individual-HUF 19565 0.39 

Public 1351903 26.87 

Non Resident Indian 14143 0.28 

Total 8031750 100.00 



CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 regarding conservation of energy, and technology absorption apply to your Company 

N NGE NINGS iTGO 

Value of Imports Rs 3,81,80,070 

Expenditure in Foreign Currency 4,.31,810.80 EURO 

Value of Imported Raw Matenal NIL 

Foreign Exchange Eamings durme thevear = NIL 

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

There was no case filled during the vear, under the sexual harassment of women af workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Further Company ensures that there is a healthy and safe aimosphere for 
every women emplovee al the workplace and made the necessary policies for safe and secure environment for 
women emplovee 

INDUSTRIAL RELATION 
Industral relation remamed cordial and peaceful dunng the vear. Your Directors wish to place on record the 
appreciation for the devoted services rendered by the workers. staff and executives of the Company at all 
levels which have very much contributed to the effictent management of the Company's.affairs and assistance: 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Pursuant to Regulation 27 of the SEBI(LODR) 2015 with the stock exchanges, Corporate Governance Report 

and Auditor's Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance are made a part of the 
annual Report 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 
Pursuant 10 Clause 49(1V) (i) of the Listing Agreement: As pari of the directors” report or as an addition 
thereto. a Management's Discussion and Analysis Report for the vear is presented in a separate section 
forming part of the Annual Report. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The Directors would like to express their grateful appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received 
from customers, vendors, stakeholders, Central and Stale goverment Authonties and other business 
associates and bankers of the Company Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all the emplovees for 
rendering high quality service io every constituent of the Company 's customers. The emplovees have worked 
on pnnaples of honestv. integniy, fair play and this has helped to ensure a sustained excellence in 
performance. Finally, Directors would like to convey their gratitude to the members and look forward to their 
continued support 

_ FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARDS i" «VT! 
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PLACE: BHILWARA ——1p-C. CHHABRA] |T. C.Chhabra] 
DATED: 31.07.2024 Din Nemenmeerot Din Ne-O01674Q) ir out 
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ANNEXURE: | TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Statement containing particulars pursuant to the companies (disclosure of particulars in the reparts of 
Bourd of directors) rules, 1983. 

1.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 
Conservation of energy is very hich priority area for the company. The efforis are continuing to examine 
and implement fresh proposals for conservation of energy and minimizeits use by regularly monitoring 
Consumption and improved maintenance of the existing 

sv stem. 
FORM "A a 

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

A 

b 

Loe
 a

 

ELECTRICITY 

Purchase Units |In KWEI] 
Total Amount {[n Rupees} 

Rate/Uni [In per KWH] 

Own Generation 

Through Diesel Generator |!n KWH] 
unit/ltrs in diesel oil 
cost [Rs¥ unit} 

Through Solar Generator [In KWH] 
Tran. Charge 

Turbine (Gen.) Unit 

Coal 

Ow [Ton] 
TOTAL COST [Rs] 
Average Rate [Rs/Ton| 

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF 
PRODUCTION 
Fabric production | Mrs] 
Elsetricity Jin Kwh] 
Coal jin Ke} 

F Di + dal 

Research & Development 
Technoloxy Absorption 
Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo 

PLACE: BHILWARA 
DATE: 30" May, 2024 

31.03.2024 

TLL Sea 0) 
GTAIIO43 00 

O49 

160240) 

3.06 

30.179 

2415447 
1856025 

TOL95S3.00 

421970 

29433566 
4962 92 

S08 13300 
0.212 

1.835 

31.03.2023 

6340364 00 

56501975 (00) 

8.9] 

222127 
3.25 

28.75 

22801)32 
13351556 

1218567, (00) 

426536 

288059607 
H753.4) 

49422935 
0204 
0) 863 

NIL 
NIL 
NIL



During the year Company constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) pursuant to 
provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 

Policy) Rules, 2014 are provided herein below: 

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, | The CSR Policy of the Company reflects the 
Including overview of projects or programs | Company's philosophy on its social 
Proposed to be undertaken and a reference to | commitment and mission which is designed 
the ‘web-link to the CSR policy and projects or | to portray its obligation to be a responsible 
programs corporate citizen and presents the strategies 

and methods for undertaking social 
programs for well-being and sustainable 
development of the local community in 
which it operates. The Policy applies to all 
CSR initiatives and activities taken upat the 

| Various work centers and locations of the 

Company, for the benefit of various 
segments of the society, with the emphasis 
on the under privileged. Each CSR 
activity/project of the Company is 
undertaken/ executed either directly by the 
Company or channelized through 
implementing agencies. In compliance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Company has framed a CSR Policy 

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee 1. Sh, Deepak Karwa 
2. Sh. Saurabh Chhabra 
3, Smt, Divya Praveen Kothari 

3. Average net profit of the company for last Average net profit of Rs. 418.50 Lacs 
Three financial years. 

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of | Rs. 8.37 Lacs 
The amount asin item 3 above). 

5. Details of CSR spent during the Gnancial year 
2023-24 
(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial | Rs. 8.37 Lacs 

Year 2023-24 
Rs. §.50 Lacs 

(b}) Amount spent 
NIL 

{c) Amount un spend 



Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below: 

Rs. In Lacs 

(1)_ | {2} (3) (4) {5} (6) (7) (8) 
5S. | CSR project or | Sector in Projects or Amount | Amount Cumulativ | Amount 
No. | activity which The Programs outlay spent on c spent. Direct 

identified Project is 1) Local (budget) | the projects | Expenditu | or through 
‘Covered area or project | ar programs | re upto implementi 

other or Sub- heads | the ng Agency. 
2) Specify program |: 1j)Direct on | reporting 
the state & | s wise. projects or | period. 
District programs 
where 2) 
projects or Overheads: 
programs 
was under 
take 

1 Ensuring Right based | Barotiya 8.50 8.50 5.50 Agency 
Environment | approached | (Rajasthan) 
Sustainability | for 
& Gaushala livelihood 

enhanceme 
nt 

Total 8.56 8.50 |. 8.50 

The Company has spent Rs, 8.50 Lacs against obligation of Rs, 8.37 Lacs during the year 2023-24. Total 
amount of Rs. 0.17 Lakhs is spent in excess by the Company during the year 2023-2024 

The Company is committed to focus on growth and betterment of lives by contributing towards 

communities around which it operates. we are continuously exploring new opportunities, activities and 
initiatives that align with our CSR Policy and create maximum impact. 

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance 
with the CSR Objectives and Policy of the Company. 
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O. P. DAD & CO. 

Chartered Accountant 

First Floor, Plot No. 49, MTM Colony, 

Bhilwara-311001 (Rajasthan) 

independent Auditor's Report 

To, 

The Shareholders of 

4A. SPINTEX LIMITED 

Bhilwara 

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of A.K. SPINTEX LIMITED ("the Company”), 

which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including other 

comprehensive income), Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 

ended and 2 summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, 

In our opinion and te the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)in 

the manner so required and give a true and falr View In conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 

prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015, as amended, ("ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in india, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 the profit and total comprehensive Income, changes In equity 

and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements In accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
Specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards 

are further deseribed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 

our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 

institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the independence requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the ~ 

Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the (CAl's Cade of Ethics. We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters are addressed in the context of our 

audit of statements as a whole, and In forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are:no key audit matters to communicate in 

our report. 

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 
The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, 

but does not Include the financial statements and our auditors’ reporttherean. 
Our opinion on the fina 



inconnection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other Information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 

based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there isa material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact to these charged with governance. We have nothing to 
reportin this regard, 

Responsibility of Management and Those charged with governance for the Financial Statements 

The Company's management and Board of directors are responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial staternents that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive 

income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principles 

generally accepted In India Including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) referred to in section 133 
of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

This responsibility also Includes maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making Judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate Internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS 

financial state ments that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or errar, 

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
golng concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so, 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 

includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance ls @ high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or In the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of these financial statements. 

As partof an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company hat adequate internal financial controls 

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

z accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting » Evaluate the appr oy he 

d& by management. estimates and relgted'¢ 



* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether = material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. if we 
conclude that a materia! uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 

the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events Ina 

manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materfality Is the magnitude of misstatements In the financial statements that, Individually or in 

aperegate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 

financial statements may be Influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 

planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 

effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our Independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters In our auditor's report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, In extremely rare circumstances, we determine 

that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of daing so 

would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 

A, a Statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable, 

4) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(5) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 

as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 

cash flow statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account; 
a 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid ind AS financial statements coniply-with the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act except in IndAS-19 “Employee Benefits’ where 



(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 341 March 

2024 from being appointed as a director In terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; and 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report In 

“Annexure B” and 

B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our apinion and te the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us: 

(i) The company has disclosed the impact, Ifany, of pending litigations on its IND AS financial position in 

its Ind AS financial statements 

(li) as per the information provided to us by the management, the company has not entered in to long 

term contract including derivative contracts for which provisioning |s required; 

(iii) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than 

those disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 

(Either from borrowed funds, share capital or any other source or kind of funds) by the company 
to or in any other person(s) or entity(s), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 

understanding that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 

Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries. 

(iv) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than 

those disclased in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from 

any person(s) or entities including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”) with the understanding 

that such company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) 
or provide guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries. 

(v) Based on the audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the above 

representations given by the management contain any material mis-statement. 

(vi) As the Company has not declared any dividend In the past years & there is no unpaid dividend, so 
there is no requirement of transfer of amount in Investor Education & Protection fund (IEPF), 

C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16}: 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by 

the Company to its directors during the current year Is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 

of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit jaid down under Section 197 
of the Act. The Mi te Affairs has not prescribed other detalls under Section 197(16) which 

are required to n by us. 



BD) The company has used such accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a 
feature of recording audit trail (edit jog) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year 

for al| transactions recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has not been tampered with 

and the audit trail has been preserved by the company a6 per the statutory requirements for record 

retentions. 

f= Ey 
a7 For: O.P.Dad& Co, ff 

Chartered Accountants. [AN] 

No, 0023300, : 

ML. No. 409237 

UDIN- 24409237 BRKEVZY5223 
Place: Bhilwara 

Dated: 30 May, 2024 
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of "Re on Other Legal and Regulato 

Requirements” of our report of even date 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the Information & explanation 

given to us during the course of our audit, we report that: 

i! 

(A) 

(B) 

(c) 

(0) 

{E) 

(a) The Company has tnaintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(b) The company is not having any intangible assets so there is no requirement to maintain records 

regarding intangible assets, 

All the Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management during 

the year but there is a regular program of verification which in our opinion is reasonable having 

regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were 

noticed on such verification. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the 

Company. 
No Revaluation of its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets both has been done by the 

company during the year. 

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benam 

property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder. 

(A) As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management 

at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure for such verification is 

acceptable and at par with Industry standards. On the basis of information & explanations given to 

us, No discrepancies of 10%. or more in the aggregate or In any class of Inventory was noticed by 

management during such physical verification of stocks as compared to book records. 

(B) Ouring any point of time of the year, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits In 

excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security 

of current assets. The management has informed that the Quarterly statements submitted te the 

bank are provisional in nature. The Quarterly returns or Statement furnished to the bank are 

broadly In recenciliation with books of accounts subject to few differences on account of valuation 

methodology, Wastages, dead stock, reconciliation differences on account of multiple stages of 

production, stock kept at third party premises, as per explanation of management in the schedule 

“Short term borrowings”. 

According to the information & explanations given to us and.on the basis of our examination of the books 

of account, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or uhsecured, to companies, firms, LLP or any 

other parties during | the year, an has not made any Investment/ not provided any guarantee/ not given 

security during: Rye The’ ia ining para of the clause either Nil or not applicable, 



IV According to the information & explanations given to us and.on the basis of our examination of the 

books of account, the Company has not granted any loan to directors and complied with the provisions 

of section 185 and 186 of the companies act. 

V The Company has not accepted any loans/depesits from public, In our opinion and according te the 

information and explanation given to us the provisions of Section 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Rules framed there under, wherever applicable, are belng complied with. No order has been 

passed by company law board against the company. 

Vi The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of the cost records under 148(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 In respect to the company's products. We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts and 

records maintained by the company in this connection and are of the opinion that prima facie, the 

prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have however, not made a detailed 

examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

Vil 

According to the Information and explanation given to us, In respect of statutory dues:- 

a. Actording to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues Including Provident Fund, 

Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Custorn Duty, GST, Sales Tax, Excise Duty, VAT, Cess and other 

statutory dues have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the 
information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the afcresaid 

dues were outstanding as at 31st March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they 

have become payable, 

b. According to the information & explanations given to us and the records examined by us, there |s no 
amount which have not been deposited on account on account of any dispute in respectof income tax, 

customs duty and excise duty, GST and cess, except the disputed statutory dues aggregating to Rs. 51.70 

Lac that have not been deposited on account of matters pending before appropriate authorities are as 

under: 

Name of the Financial year to which | Nature of | Forum where dispute is Amount | 

Statute the matter pertains the dues pending 
(Rs. Im Lac) | 

| Textiles CessAct | | 1997-2007  |TCCess | Textile Gess Tribunal, — | ee 
i i 

Central Excise Act, 2002-2003 Excise Duty | Commissioner (Appeals) | 5.44 

1944 

Vill According to the information and explanations given to us, There are no transactions which are not 

recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed b¢ Income during the year in the tax 

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), 



(A) Based on our audit procedures and on the information & explanations given by the management, 

we are of the opinion that, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial 
institutions, banks. 

(8B) According to the information and explanations given to us, Company is not declared wilful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the year. 

(C) Accerding to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, term loans sanction have been applied for the purpose for which It were 

obtained. 

(O) According to the information and explanations given to us, funds ralsed on short term basis have 

not been utilized for long term purposes. 

(E) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any funds 
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 
ventures, 

(F) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has nat raised loans during 

the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

x 
{AjAccording to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company did not ralse any money by way of Initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. 

(B) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 

debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. 

xl 

(A) In our opinion and according to the information & explanations given to us, we report that no 
material fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 

informed of such case by the management, 

(8) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors 

in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central Government, 

(C) According te the information & explanations given to us, No whistle-blower complaints have 
recelved during the year. 

XI Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations give to us, the Company Is not a Chit 

Fund / Nidhi / Mutual Benefit Fund / Society, Therefore, the provision of clause 3(xil) of the Companies 

(Auditor's Report} Order, 2017 |s not applicable to the Company. 

Kill According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 

of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the 

Act where applicable and detalls of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as 

required by the applicable accounting standards. wh 
nf ME hss 

XIV. Internal Audit |s not applicable to companies. So paragraph 3(xiv) is not applicable to company. 

KV Accord ation and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 

ny has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 



XVI The Company ls not required to be registered under sec. 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

XVII The Company has not incurred cash losses In the financial year and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 

XVIIl There has been resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and the 
auditor has taken inte consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors, 

XIX On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other Information accompanying the financial staternents, Our broad 

knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit repert that company is. capable of meeting its liabilithes existing 

at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year frorn the balance sheet 

date, 

XX CSR provisions as per section 135 are not applicable to companies, so provisions of paragraph 3(XX) are 
not applicable te company. 

XM! The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial staternents. Hence, clause 3(Xxi) is not 

applicable. 

For: O.P. Dad & Ca. 

ee 
i. 

<I Abhishek Dad 
é ) rex 
Partner 

M. No, 409237 

UDIN- 24409237BKEYZY5223 

Place: Bhilwara 
Dated: 30" May, 2024 

fee



ANNEXURE 8 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS OF A.K SPINTEX LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of A.K SPINTEX LIMITED (“the 

Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing end maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal contra! over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. These 
responsibilities Include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of ts assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 
of rellable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

resorting based on our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

internal Financial Controls Over Financia! Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards an Auditing, 
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of Internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 

Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements. and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit 

involves performing procedures to obtain audit eviderice about the adequacy of the Internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting included obtaining en understanding of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting |s a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s interna! 

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 

as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statementsmaccorda nce with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention r timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

company's assets Cease materia! effect.on the Ind AS financial statements. 
aS 



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent (imitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 

over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In Gur opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Interna! Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

For: O.P. Dad & Co. 

Chartered Acco 

Firm Reg. No. 

UDIN- 24409237BKEVYZYV5223 

Place: Bhilwara 

Dated: 30th May, 2024 
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BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024 

{Amount in Lacs) 
Ad at As at 

sae 11ST MARCH, 2074 31ST MARCH, 2023 

ASSETS 
Mon -curteryt aurea 
Property, plant aed enul pent J 3Ot243 27574 
Capital Work-in-Progrest * 

intorigthe annesa 
Iintangitle aieett under dewelogrnent 

‘Financie Assets 
[roeytereriis. i 0d Fat 

Lom ] . - 
Other Fingreclal Aspete 4 oe 74.55 

‘Other Nes-curment sonets 5 : 
TOTAL MON-CURAENT ASSETS 4,907.71 1,825.62 

Current aspets 
brertorbe, + 7aao7 761.21 

Financial Agueee 
investinionts tT 
Trade receivable: i 1,606.97 1,989.01 

Cath and cash equivalents a PL) pee 

Lome iL] " . 

Ohher Financial Anots W 9.8 429 

Other Current Aasets ti 4 #2033. 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS. 7,945,435 3,784.37 

TOTAL ASSETS 6,656.54 6 0.99 

EQRATY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity Share capital 13 401.18 $03.10 
‘Other Equity 1a Le 1 
TOTAL EQUITY 4,097,238 3,052.55 

(hae Pelaes: 

Piraruptad Ltaby tithes 
Borrowings i$ 18574 7.98 
Pegianey th 6 
Other Fircarcial Liabbitien. it : 

Defereed tam liabilrries {Meth i) 1M 101s 

thor pon-tarrent lsbiite om ' : 

TOTAL WOM-CURAENT LIABRLITIES, 20.65 44179 

Current abiities 
(Floresta ited esi 
Borrowings. ri S7a.51 Mio 

Trae pajpotalern rh 
{) Total qutrhending duet of micro enterpries and weal 

iythaladoe: 

li) Total cuttending duc c! creditucs othe than micro 
mmiterorive: and amall enterprines rane ists 

‘Other Financial Liatilickes rr A749 0.37 
Otter Curreent tlabitities iy a | 148.02 
Provisions 4 ($6.45 1 

TOTAL CUBRENT LIABILITIES 668.65 7,492,6) 

1950.05 2,734.42 

6,836.4 5,386, 98 

tes 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 
ACM SPRINTEM LIMITED, HULA 

[P.C. CHHABRA) [7.¢. CHHABRA ] 
[MANAGING DIRECTOR) [ORRECTOR] = J. 

PLACE: BHILWARA ¥O.0018504 | (nM 
ATE: 30.05.2024 

(COMPANY SECRETARY) = (CFO) 
(M.HO: ARATE? |



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 

Revenue from operations 

Other Income 

Total Income 

Cost of Material Consumed a 2,529.62 
Purchase of Stock-in- Trade 28 0 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work.tn-Progress and Stock-in-Trade ra (a7'.04) 

Manufacturing Expenses 30 5,393.82 
Employee Benefits Expenses v 148724 
Finance Costs n 75.99 
Depreciation / Amarttation and Depletion Exprnsecs 687.26 
Other Expenses x 462.93 

Total Expenses 10,589.78 

Proitt Before Tax 1,137.81 

Tax Expenses Hu 

Current Tax 301.56 

Ceferned Tax (848) 

793.08 

Profit for the Year 644.73 

Other comprehensive income: 

Total comprehensive income for the year 44.73 

Earnings per equity share of face value of T 10 each 644,73 

Basic (int) 16.79 

Diluted (int) 16.79 

1to 46 

FOR AND OM BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

FRN = 002330C 
DATE: 30.05.2074 

PLACE: BHILWARA 
DIM: 24402 FRKEY EN od 

-— 

(Amount In Lacs) 
2027-23 

V1 Gad? 

12.15 

Rg = 
[P.c. CHHABRA) 

[ GING CIRECTOR) 

e i] 

FaA : 
| eT 

[COMPANY SECRETARY] 

(MNO): AT41B2 ) 

11,655 

P42.51 

FA 

T3242 

14.56 
14.56 

opinvTesd LY. 

Oyewct 6 



AK, SPINTER LUTE, Pala 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENED 31st MARCH, 2024 
LAnmecant hry Ma.) Chron ine Lacs) 

i WO22-1) Foreors | 2022-1) 

A; CASH FLOW PROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Mod Prof Before Tas op per Statement of Profit, end Los 29,457,807 87 9,42,50,479) 141370 9425) 

Actua bide for: . 

(Profit) / bineon Sale Goce of Assets (Met i588] mri | BAL) er) 
Sacelry avarta il ' “| + | 

/ vontitation and Depletion Exper 6,87,26,072 6,74, 22629) HST 2H] a2) 

Check of Exchange Rate Change D . : 4 
(Hel Galen cn irreteatromnta, 
Da viederrnl bewiaartne - +| 

IMerest income (7,75, 152) 
Aimance cous Oa, 14) 

Cperating Pratt before Working Cashel Changer 16,28, 62, 408 

dchuavied for 
Trace ered Gtr Ripcorivatles 468, 14,083 
inventor hem 1, 

Other Carett art (12, 79,0) 
Other Financial ainate it 
Trecke Puyabien 167,44 At 
Other Finascial Lisbiittes. Fh, 00] 

Other Cartent Liabilities & Proviiiana 24, 70 

Conk Qenerated fron Operation THF ie, 057) 

Tame, Fania] | Mert) ycsyibnale 

Met Canh flew from Gperating Activities 24,23,81,374 10,67, 44, 

B CASH PLOW PROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES A 
Purchase of tanglnhe end intangible waets (17 48, b4, 764) (4, 157, 1G 9,7} pte toll 
Pretend. tram digposal of tangihte and ketangible wate 18,20, 1400, VEO) 18.40) E02 
Weal In Mo arrent Assets (20/5 oad (13,48 1) 20.51) oe) 
Punchare of Other bwewenents « - . | 

Net cath flow for other financial aarti 4 4 

heres imperree C4, ay 1 anal Tas 

Dividend Incornr from Sutnidiary and Apcutey | 

Qhetdend Incrmter fer) Others . 

Ale Cama) Flee (ined ben) irrwergtieng detheisiers O77 6601, 345)] (8,98, 77.979) (1, 7ea81)) (re TB] 

(Cc: CASH PLOW FDU PIMC CTE PRES 
roomed fram have of Equity Taare Cartel 
Share Apa icity crag “ 

Saet Prochedk from Lang Term Barroeinge A, TPG) 151, (V4E.71) 453 
Other Hon Current Financial Liabelaties & Prepvishoe 2 : : 
(merece in bane erreeving for Working Capital 136,68, 741) 00,44, Fd 1066) B45 

Qivicieeds Fale (irucsating Beviowod Gistritpuiicn. Tan) ) 

friterieat Pabed (75,56, 555) (84,04, 1 fa) oa (e.04) 
Mee Sanh flow frams(Waed in) Pinancing Acthtten (2:55,38,024) (190,923,530) (T5538 190,12] 

Het (Decreate|!lnereese in Cash end Cash Equivabents 102,005 (149,517) 1 “1.48 

Opentay Balance of Cavh and Cah Equbvalents Lara 1706 ni a 

Oosing Gein of Cech eed Grrh Equivalent 2,953,484 1447 Li hie | 

AS POR AUT APORT Of ee THE BOARD 

For: 0.P. MADR CO. 4 f, CO) ; it *ta . 0 (NTER LPB. 

t f ag VED eae eames 

v0 1T PasTHER a ‘Ma. Fi pays L . 
MNO - AON -* RYVAL 
FRA = 0023900 - HH : 
PLACH) BHILWARA ’ AM Bae 

BATE: $0,08,2024 (COMPANY SECKETARY] 7 ee 
DING: I400T TREY OTT m NO AE ETT F a 

fd PE have
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eae 
T
E
S
S
 
S
u
 

C
o
s
t
 a5 

at 
April 

1, 
2023 

Additions 

Disposal 

C
o
s
t
 

a5 
at 

March 
31, 

2024 

A
c
c
u
m
u
l
a
t
e
d
 

depreciation 
at 

at 
April 

1, 
2023 

D
e
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
 

for 
the 

year 
Disposal 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

at 
at 

March, 
31 

2024 

Net 
carrying 

a
m
o
u
n
t
 

as 
at March 

34, 
2023 

Met 
carrying 

amount 
as 

at 
March 

31, 
2024 

P
a
y
 

Freehold 
Land 

Buildings 
Plant & Machinery 

Equipments 
Furniture 

@ Fixtures 
Vehicles 

Total 

759193 
752.69 

5,525.37 
46.79 

56.31 
356,00 

6,997.10 
105.95 

1,616.71 
4.42 

428 
17.29 

1,768.65 
‘ 

. 
212.52 

: 
. 

: 
212.52 

259,93 
658,65 

6,929.55 
S121 

60.59 
393.29 

6,553.23 

770.13 
3,704.97 

38.21 
46.37 

186.38 
4,246.07 

277 
629.92 

41 
1.28 

8
7
 

« 
687.26 

‘ 
192.72 

e 
- 

“ 
A 

192.72 
“_ 

7 

291.91 
4,142.17 

41.63 
47.05 

217.26 
© 

“4,740.61 

259.93 
759.93 

2759.92 
759,93 

259.93 
299.93 

1,559.60 

259.93 
566.74 

2,787.39 
9,59 

12.94 
176,03 

3,812.62 

31st 
March, 
2023 

Cost 
as 

at 
April 

1, 
2022 

Additions 

Dispersal 

Cost 
as 

at 
March 

31,2023 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

as 
at 

April 
1, 

2072 

Beprectation 
forthe 

year 
Dispersal 

A
c
c
u
m
u
l
a
t
e
d
 
depreciation 

as 
at 

March 
31, 

2023 

Wet 
carrying 

amount 
at 

at 
March 

31, 
2022 

Net 
carrying 

amount 
as 

at 
March 

31, 
2023 

229.71 
bit, 18 

5,086.50 
41,10 

52.93 
231.58 

6,308.01 
30.22 

8. 
57 

667.35 
5.69 

1.38 
124.41 

917.57 
. 

: 
228,48 

: 
728.48 

259.9) 
752.69 

5,525.37 
46.79 

56.31 
356.00 

6,997.10 

: 
247.78 

3,345.65 
36.26 

45.39 
166.13 

3,841.20 
. 

22.35 
568,68 

1,96 
0.98 

20.26 
614.23 

- 
209,36 

. 
: 

209. 36 

270.13 
3,704.97 

38.21 
46.37 

186.38 
4,246.07 

229,71 
418.40 

1,740.86 
4.84 

7.54 
65.46 

2,466.81 
S
a
i
s
 

759.93 
482.56 

1,820.40, 
‘B39 

IN 
9.95 

169.61 
2,751.04 
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” 
r
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“
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3. LOANS (UNSECWRED AND CONMDERED 6000) 

Total 

4. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - NOM CURRENT 
Deposits with FSER & Other Bemertenents 

Total 

3, OTHER NOWMCURALENT ASSETS 
(Unsecured and Conaldered Good) 

Pretininary Expenses Hot Witt 

Lest: Transforred te PBL Ale 

Totai 

& (XVENTORES 
Fw Materials (lnciucing Material in Transtt] 

Total 

A. All the abeve invertors fue beer) valued at Cost or Net reniiable value whichever. is lower, 

6. WIP Gr Firth Fabrics Sioch welied to the extent of processing cost invehed 

7. | SVESTMENTS - CURRENT 

6. TRADE RECEW ABLES 

Trade receivables Coniidered good » Secures 
Tracks roceteables Corsidered good - Urruecured 

Trade reteivnbies which have geenificent incre in Crectt 

Pind: 
Trade: recerveales - Credit impaired 

Tradn receivabim Related Partie Comicered gon & 
Linnecured 

Total 

BFE 
f ra 

Anat Ab Be 

3157 MARCH, TOde 3157 MARCH, 202) 

0.03 0.03 

O04 0,00 

An at Ast 

31ST MARCH, 2034 3157 MARCH, 202) 

An at Aa at 
31ST MARCH, 2024 3457 MARCH, 2075 

oie Fa 

F3.06 74.55 

Anat Aa at 
2187 MARCH, 3034 5757 MARCH, 202) 

Aa ot An at 
2157 MARCH, 2074 30ST MARCH, 2023 

14 0) 

46,9 0 
4358 W164 

174.76 22.04 

744.07 chiral 

As at Ab at 
3157 MARCH, 2074 Y1ST MARCH, 2023 

Ag at Aa at 
JST MARCH, 2024 5ST MARCH, 2025 

* ™! 
a 

1,586.97 1a 

t 

The balance outstanding with sundry debtors efter dele Candi yee subject to confirmation and reconciliation



§. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash en Hara 

Balarsne with bars 

Cah and cosh equivalents as per balance sheet 

10. LOANS - CLRENT 
(Unsecured and Comidered Gadd) 

Total 

14, OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 
interest Receivable on FA 
Internist Reorlenblir yindes Gratuity Scher 

ri 
Advance to Onrers 

Total 

*Mortgaged with tank against the outstanding of term lear from Acs Gant & against Bent Guranter 

Anat Aa al 

J4ST MAMCH, 2024 MIST MARCH, 2070 

1“ om 
tt a | 

2.5 1.43 

Agat Anat 
31ST MARCH, 2024 W157 MARCH, 2003 

oe As BE 

AST MARCH, 2024 3157 MARCH, 2070 

Ob D3 
O34 oh 
i as 
LM O27 

5.7 420 

Anat An ot 
3457 MARCH, 2014 34ST MARCH, 2073 

#33.40 Wy) 
: 4h.) 
. tt 

1S44 15a 
= 293 

40.05 
Pie) 403.71 

oF 
% 7 

ra - Ae
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Al at As at 

157 MARCH, 2024 39ST MARCH, 2923 
1h. SORROWINGS 

Betured - At amortived cott 
Term Lom from: Barker 

HOPC Beak Term Loan 7 Hin ne. 
HOFE Bani COV 19 LOAN « 44.37 

Wethcle Loses fron Bankes 40.20 a0 

$ub Total (A) 18524 e798 

Unsecured - At amortiaed coxt 

From Director, Shoreholdert, Members and fetative: 

Sub Total (a) 

Toted (Ay=i) 185,24 S775 

19.1 Financial liar obligation, Dquipement and vehicle lows aro tecured by hypothecation of respective auiets 

Teri of Reganimer See Ameunt fot Rete Installments eenqurt, 

feet charge of hypothecation charge on entice stock, Book 3. 9.10 «= 1.44 Lece Per Quarter 
Oebe, bitlt 4 other chegeble qrrent mitts. alin persanally 

usranted by director. dso by tet change on factory land and 
Brillctireg sine 15,087 sqpnt: and pient, & machinery lye in 
factory orectees. 

S50) COVE 19 Los 
Term of Resevnent DAG enocet, hot, ent, 
first charge ef hypathecation charge oo entire rock, Book 43.37 9.00. 0.27 Lacs Per Month 
Debts, ils & other chagetle current ataein. alin personally tharting From October 

Quarented by director, Alen by tat change on factory Land and 207i! 

Budiey sine 15,057 sqmt and pint br machinery lydieg tts 

Wohiele Laan 
Terra of Repayment lnveress Mate. instalimente 
Secured by relevant vehicles M44 Various intecst rates Instalinvents of Ay, 1915 

Lumen. Prpoatlar liv reget, yorar 

Ag at Aa at 

S187 MARCH, 2074 315T MARCH, 39023 
16, PROVEIONS - NOM CUAREMT 

Total _ = = 

Aa As wt 

31ST MARCH, 2024 3157 MARCH, 207) 
17. OTE FIMAMCLAL LIABILITIES - HOW CURRENT 

Tetal * = 

a 
As at Anat 

31ST MARCH, 2074 S157 MAREN, 2005 

16. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (WET) 

The maveeneryt on the cheferred fax scenunt tp me follows: 

At the start of the year 19385 1h 17: 

‘Charges credit) to Staterment.af Profit and Loss 8.420 74. 12282 

At the end of year (5b = Tes 

Component of Geferred tax Uabiiiten / (eet) Ag ot hat 

. Viet March, 200) 
Geferred tax (adslitties J jauet) in relacien 

Property, plant and equipment Ti 140.48 
Proviulon fer Gratuity 1 5,14) 

Total 141.95 113.85 



3457 MARCH, 2024 3157 MARCH, 2023 

19, OTHER MOW-CURRENT LIABILITIES. 

Total = 

At at Atat 

2157 MARCH, 214 3157 MARCH, 2000 

70, BORROWINGS - CLARENT 
Secured - At Amorthed Coat 

Working Capitel Loans 
From Banks Mo.04 474 
Current. maturitics of Long Tere Oett 12.77 
Sub Total [aj nied wes 

Ureecured - At Amortized Cort 

Sub Total (By i 

Total (Aj+(8) 520,01 645. $0 

Working Capita! Loans from Bands ane secured by hypathecation of preient and future stock of raw mntertals, work-in-progress, finished goods, ctor 

book debts, outstanding monies, rrcelvables, claims, biltg, meterials in traret, ete. 

AL at at 

DIST MARCH, 2024 295T MARCH, 2023 
Ti, TRADE PAYABLES 

1) Total outstanding dus: of micrs enterprise: end tall 
enterpinnt - 

UN} Tote) Guistanting Gur of credtten. other than micre 

enterprises and small eriterpriset- 
Far Materials ea 1,105 
For Contractors & Others uy 656 
Capttad goods 152.90 ' 

Total 41,774.90 1,516.95 

"The balance outstanding with wnéry cedeaes etiher aebit of credit are subject. to confirmation. end reconciliation 

2) The Compa ham mot caneleed acy btehation trees thn sappllers Getty eed under Miord, Genel Oca! Mouth Liters Deseloperr Act, DOGG UME Since Lhe rote 
opie? uncle AAT dace, AON cues rat: her rman, Pirate, De coenicanity qecee atl (ales get privet ttn ts Suppliers retttsin onpgrises crmct gwertod wrc-thisn Chen emunayerieers bf one 
rier: se mantener, 

202 The pieced arheunt and thee Witerect due thereon temaineng amped fei iny euler at he ert oF emcth ar cuLerting peer 

70 The amount of foteces pid by ihe tee inter ef aection 16 of the viona, tenella Aede Detecpre Dewrlopenent Act, PDGG (2) of 200K) along pelt Whe amour of 
‘he anit inode other angler beyond He appointed dary citing each neice year 

Va Thee ameurt of interest Sun ane paryabria for ther perked of dfekey be wuabing ppaneteret (wir far Seeer aid Eat Geeyored ther appotetad dey dursig (ler eae) et who 
aeey Cle teres epochs urea tie Aaicra, Seu] aval Menta Enuerprtem Deering art 20H: 

74 Te amount of itreies! eter and pein angel ae Lhe ered of each seceeeting yrat 

Doh The amount of further boteresd termnireng cue and pampriile ener i he sorcioctieg yam, ult) wel date ben the Witierent Jabuer are actully: psal to chet weal 
etierprae fo ihe parte of dealers of a detictibie ceperdiiuee under section 23 of the Miro, fanall ari kere Deter prt Zeit, Rie 

Hote > The Governmint of Initia hak premuipa tee anact namety The dere, Sarai lk skedioc Enterprna Oeeeioceerrrt act TOD6" WALI conten Weir tance erttihethect Ihom dreote 
Che Mino & Steal Enepeiees & Pry Chere Gelert bn ceercue leeyord the aber ited) paring IrrigEctieg cf Gee bene ageeced weit the eetedjorman. Thee Cermquney fee ieeriaten) the | 
Stepper 6 oo rece? of ormical repeats bi neqaorne from peered each potented partic, the lisldny of Wyre Cannel ba reads tats nor can required clos be mak 

compile atl coligblaomesmate cart te nadie. ince the Corman be regu in makieg poymene to all ieppliers, the mares does not anticiuate any ayn eet intoemet tonbi 

DST MARCH, 2974, <,., J8T MARCH, 2023 

ora 50.37 

67.49 $0.37 



74, -PROVSIOME - CURRENT 

Provision for Gratutity” 
Provision for tnceeria Tam 

Total 

Anat Agat 

1ST MARCH, 2024 31ST MARCH, 2025 

17.1 17.15 
Le a? 

190.79 148? 

‘i at AS at 

3157 MARCH, 2024 3157 MARCH, 2073 

7a SO. 

53,57 5.5 
15h. 65 1.74 

* Ja no mcturisl welustion be been done, hones, whoie of provision lun been coniderd at current due to non availability of estimate, 

Pe
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{Aniount In Lacs) 
2023-24 2022- 

SALE OF SERVICES 

Job Processing Receipts 172,55 14,643.27 

Total 11,723.55 11,640.27 

Rebates, claims and discount etc on sales are accounted for and being provided for as and when settled with the parties as per consistent 

policy adopted by the Company every year 

(Amount in Lacs) 

Intenest 
Bank deposits & Other: 4.04 7.25 

Profit on sale of Fixed Assets : 4,90 

Totai 4.04 12.15 

(Arment tn Lace | 

2023-24 2022-23 
25.1 Other Comprehensive Income 

TOTAL : : 

(Amount In Lact) 
2023-24 2022-23 

Cryer Chemicals: 

Opening stock 88.03 167.09 
Add: Purchases 2,550.79 2,582.93 
Add: Purchasing Expenses 

2,638.76 2,750.02 

Lies: Closing stock 114 48.09 

2,529.62 7,661.98 

Rebates, clare and discount etc on Purchase are sccounted for onc being provided for 2: and when settled with the parties ax per 
comitent policy adopted by the Company every year. 

(Amount tin Lacs) 

2023-24 2022-23 

ff ED



Inventories (at commencement) 
Finished Goods / Stock-ln-Travcie Wb 449,76 
Work-in-Progress 39.98 45.30 

413.13 495,06 

Inventories (at close) 

Finished Gooeis / Steck-in- Trade 413.58 A73.16 

Work-in- Progress 46.59 9.98 

460.17 413.13 

Total (47.04) 81.93 

{Amount in Lacs} 
2023-24 2022-23 

Store & Spares. conmumed 4,336.74 4,100.67 
Cool Consumed 2,094,34 2,680.40 
Power & Fuel 749,48 644.11 
Repair & Maintainence { P&M } 233.43 T1348 
Waber charges & Air pollution Charnes 184.4) 123.67 

AO Plant Maintonance : * 79 
Other manufacturing expenses 795.44 796.22 

5,393.82 5,702.45 

tAmount In Lacs) 
2023-24 2022-23 

Salary, Wages & Other Allowances 1,359.95 1,102.86. 
E.5.1,8 PF. contribution 51,94 43,65 
Gratuity & P.L.Encashment. Mad Tih 

Staff & Labour Welfare Expereses TA) 2.72 
Bonus & exgratia 14,5) TES 

Total 1,487.21 1,203.86 

“The company %: accounting leave encaihment on mercantile/ actual basis. The company has discountinued the Gratutity policy from LIC 

and ts now provisioning for gratuity on actual undiscounted basis. Hence, provision for gratuity (including any earlier shortfalls) have been 

(Amount In Lacs) 

20224 2072-23 

interest on Term Loan 75.62 M6 
interest on Working Capital 39.85 41.54 
interest on Others 3 3.56 
Intersest on Veticle Finance “on r45 
Borrowing cost 2.40 2,13 

Total 75.99 54.04 

2023-24 2022-23 

12,1 Interest Expenses 

Short Term Borrowings Saas 414 
Long Term Borrowings 

33,73 36,81 

“in 3.56 

TOTAL 73.58 SiFi 



Ertblshment(Administrative Expenses 

Audit exp, 

Internal Auditor Feet 

Auditor Remuneration 

(Chanty &-denation 

Conveyance expenses 

Fees i subscription 

Insurance 

Legal & Professional exp, 

Salary to Managing Director 

Mice ineout expercies 

Postage Exp. 
Printing & Stationery 

Public Welfare exp. 

Repair & Matntenance ( Vehicle | 
Tetephone expenses 

Travelling Expenses 

fates & Taxes 

Loss on Sale of Plant & machinery 

CSR Expenses 

GST Tax & interest 

Selling and Distribution Expenses 
Advertisement ; 

Freight, Loading & Unloading Charges 

Finish Checking, Packing & Other Selling Expenses 
Commission on Salet 

Preliminary Expenses Written Off 

Total 

5.00 440 

1.00 6.90 

7.97 275 

9,20 B36 

119 O27 

D0 7.09 

7.52 12.87 

54.50 44.25 

475 675 

1.02 0.98 

6.87 7.28 

0.48 +03 

oa a 

4.05 3.66 

herr Lz 

0.59 149 

1.0 ‘ 

a0 
6.04 * 

173,40 118.85 

4H 45 

190,33 115.44 

+00) 42.04 

105.20 B5.73 

289.93 245,56 

0 0 

467.93 364.41 

2023-24 2022-23 

0.70 0.40 

0.3 0.20 

1.00 0.90, 

at 

%, 

fr ae



34, TAXATION 
Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Corment Tax 

Deferred tax 

MAT Credit Utilised! fentithement) 

Total income tax expenses necognised In the current year 

Profit before tax 

Current Tax Provision (A) 

Deferred tax Prewislon (B) 

Tas Expense: recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (A+B) 

Effective Tax Rate 

(Amount In Lacs) 
2023-24 2022-23 

301,56 734.41 

(8.48) (74.32) 

293.08 210.09 

1,097.81 042.51 

301.56 Th.41 

(8.48) (74.32) 

293.08 210.09 

5.76 22 

= 

i 

raft 7 Dus



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements 

35. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

A.K SPINTEX LIMITED (‘the Company’) is one of India's leading textite companies with the presence of 
almost three decades iin this industry. It is among the largest Textile Processors/weaver of Bhilwara. 
The Company isa public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the 

Companies Act applicable in India, Its shares are listed on BSE in India. The registered office of the Company 

is located at Bhilwara, Rajasthan «311001. 

The standalone financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on 

May 30, 2024. 

36. Statement of compliance 

These financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company (also called standalone 
financial statements). The Company has prepared financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 
March 31, 2023. 

The Company has consistently applied accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial 

statements 

37. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A is e 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act to be read with Rule 3 of the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 

2016. The Company's Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 comprises of the Balance 

Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Notes to 

Financial Statements. 

(B) Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and Habilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/nen-current classification 

An asset is currant when it is: & 

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; 

« Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

+ Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non: current. 

A liability fs current when; 

« It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; 

« itis held primarily for Ue puree eas 

Pa : 

Sa Dan 

« itis due to be settled wi



+ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twetve months after the 

reporting period. 
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

Operating cycie 

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 

realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company's normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable, 

it's assumed to be twelve months. 

of estimates 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that 

affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 

expenses. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are 

prudent and reasonable. Actual result may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

are recognised prospectively. 

Judgments 

information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on 

the amounts recognised in the financial statements have been given below: 

« Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held and 

assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal 

and fnterest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 

material adjustment in the subsequent period financial statements ts included below: 

« Estimation of current and deferred tax expense and asset/ Liability. 

« Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment. 

® Estimation of defined benefit obligation. 

« Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies. 

(D) Fair value of Financial Instruments: vt 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 

the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

« In the principal market for the asset or liability 

Or 

In determining the fair value of its financial instryppgots) the covipany uses a variety of methods and 

ak each reporting date. All methods of 

alue may never actually be realized,



The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances.and for which sufficient 

data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising 

the use of unobservable inputs. 

Refer Note Mo.—37 in for the disclosure on carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities, For 

financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the balance sheet date and which are not 

carried at fair value, the carrying amount approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 

instruments. 

(E) Borrowing cost 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 

necessanly takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part 

of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing 

of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 

borrowing costs. 

(F) Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it (s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company, 

the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with 

ownership nor effective controt over the goods sold, and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of 

when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 

receivable, taking Into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties 

collected on behalf of the government. 

Sale of goods 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 

goods have passed to the buyer, which generally coincides with dispatch. Revenue from export sales are 

recognized on shipment basis GST and other taxes on sales are excluded from revenue. 

Rendering of services 

Revenue from job work services is recognized based on the services rendered in accordance with the terms 

of contracts. 

Interest income 

Interest income froma financial asset is recognized using effective interest rate method. Interest income fs 

included in other income-in the statement of profit or loss. 

Other operational revenue 

Other operational revenue represents income eamed from the activities incidental to the 

business and is recognized when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms 

of the contract. 

Other income 

Other items of income are accounted as and when the right. seceive such income arises and it 

is probable thal the econom ill flow to the company and the amount of income can 



{G) Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. 

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial period of time to 

get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are 

ready to be put to use, 

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready for their intended 

use at the balance sheet date. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset"s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 

entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation 
Depreciation an property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets less residual 

values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as prescribed under Part C of 

Schedule || to the Companies Act 2013. 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they ane accounted for as 

separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful life or over the remaining useful 

life of the principal assets whichever is less. 

Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to 

determine the amount of depreciation / amortization to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful 

lives and residual values are based on the Company's historical experience with similar assets and take into 

account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortization for future periods is revised if 

there are significant changes from previous estimates. 

{H) Intangible assets 
Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less 

accumulated amortization/ depletion and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, 

borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the 

intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate 

variations attributable to the intangible assets. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits assocjated with the item will flow to the 

entity and the cost can be measured reliably. teu 

{)) Inventories 
Inventories are valued as under: 

Raw material > At Cost or NRV whichever is lower 

Stock in process - “At Cost.or NRV whichever is lower 

Stores, spares etc. + At Cost or NRV whichever is lower is a 

Finished Goods ~ At lower of Cost or Net Realizable value. 

* Raw materials: cost incl of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 

1s determined on first in, first out basis.



* Finished goods and work in progress; cost incluces cost of direct materials and labour and a 

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding 

borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis 

* Traded goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 

their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. 

All other inventories of stores, consumables, project material at site are valued at cost. The stock of waste 

is valued at net realisable value. 

Net reatisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. items of inventories are measured at lower 

of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence. 

The Company assesses at each reportivi date as to whether there is any indication that any property, plant 

and equipment and intangible assets or group of assets, called cash generating units (CGU) may be impaired. 

If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent 

of impairment, if any. 

and conti liabi 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 

past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 

settle the obligation and a retiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 

that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in 

the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cast. 

{L) Cash and cash equivalent 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand. For the purpose of the 

statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash as defined above, net of outstanding bank 

overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. 

(M) Tax Expenses 
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit 

and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or in equity. 

Tax expense relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside 

Statement of profit and loss. Tax are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other 

comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

Current tax 

Current tax assets and Wabilities are measured at te incite esgincSb OT tacconl een ce aka to the 

taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance 

sheet date. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 

and Wabilites and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes al the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary difference’, the carry forward of unused tax 

credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable profit will be available deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of 

unused tax credits and unused tax 



The Company recognizes tax credits in the mature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent that there is 

convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the 

period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes 

tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss. The 

Company reviews such tax credit asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the 

Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. 

Deferred tax Includes MAT tax credit. 

{N) Foreign currency 
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of Limited, 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction 

quoted by bank. 

Exchanse differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent, exchange 

differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings, are 

capitalized as part of borrowing costs. 

(0) Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

Shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 

period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 

equity Shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 

period, are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

(P) Financial instruments 
(1) Financial Assets 

(i) Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value 

through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition, Purchase and sale of financial 

assets are recagnised using trade date accounting. 

(ii) Subsequent measurement 

7 

A. Financial assets carried at arnortized cost (AC) m. 
a 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it 1s heid within a business model whose objective is to 

hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flaws and the contractual terms of the financial asset give 

rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding. 

(2) Financial liabilities AAT Pon, 



B. Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, For trade and other 

payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair 

value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

(3) Derecognition of financial instruments 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire of it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. 

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when 

the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

(Q) Employees Benefit: 
a) Short Term Employee Benefits 

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term 

benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term compensated absences, awards, exgratia, 

performance pay etc. and the same are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related 

service. 

b) Post-Employment Benefits 

(1) Defined contribution plan 
The Company's approved provident fund scheme and employees’ state insurance fund scheme are defined 

contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution paid/payable under-such 

schemes. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognized during the period in which the 
employee renders the related service, 

(ti) Defined benefit plan 

‘Gratuity and Leave Encashment are recognized as an expense at the un-discounted amount in the profit and 

loss account of the year in which related service is rendered. The company has not made any actuarial 

valuation in this regards. 

(R) Leases 

As lessee 

initial measurement 

Long term lease 

The company Goes not have any long term lease contract liabilities. 

Short term lease nT 

Short term lease is that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or less, A lease that 
contains a purchase option fs not a short-term lease. Low value lease is for which the underlying asset is of 

low value. If the company elected to apply short term lease/Low Value Lease, the lessee shall recognize the 

lease payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term 

or another systematic basis. The lessee shall apply another systematic basis if that basis is more 

representative of the pattern of the lessee’s benefit 
on a 



38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY: 

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31.03.2024 

(Amount in Lacs) 

Particulars Amortized cost | Financial Assets/ Financial Total Total 

Liabilities at fair Assets/ Carrying | Fair 

value through Liabilities at Value Value 
Profit or Loss fair value 

through Profit 

or Loss 

ASSETS 

HOM CURRENT 

Investments 0.03 0.03 0.03 

Other Financial 95.06 95.06 95.06 

Assets 

CURRENT 

Trade receivables | 1686.97 1686.97 | 1686.97 

Cash and cash 2.95 2.95 2.95 

equivalents _ 

Other Financial 5.78 5.76 5.78 
Assets 

NON CURRENT 

Borrowings 185.24 185.24 185.24 

CURRENT 

Borrowings $28.81 528.81 528.81 

Trade payables 1724.90 1724.90 1724.90 

Other Financial 67.49 : 67.49 67.49 
Liabilities 

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31.03.2023 (Rs In Lacs) 

Particulars Amortized cost | Financial Assets/ | Financial Assets/ | Total Total 
Liabilities at fair Liabilities atfair | Carrying Fair 

walue through value through Value Value 

Profit or Loss Profit or Loss 

the 

0.03 0.03 

74.54 74.54 



CURRENT 

| Trade receivables 1989.21 : . 1989.21 1989.21 

Cash and cash 7.33 : : 1.33 1.33 
equivalents 
Other Financial 4.29 : - 4.29 4.29 
Assets 

NON CURRENT 

Borrowings 327.95 . . 327.95 327.95 

CURRENT 

Borrowings 665.50 . = 665.50 | 665.50 

Trade payables 1516.35 - . 1516.35 | 1516.35 

Other Financial 50.37 - : 50.37 50.37 
Liabilities 

Other Financial assets and liabilities includes the financial assets and liabilities whose carrying value shown 

as amortized value:- 

Security deposits with Govt. Department as the term of agreement is not specified hence the carrying value 

is considered as amortized value. 

Loans fram Banks: As the interest is being charged itself on current market rates and the EIR is approx. 

similar to its interest rates charged, Hence Carrying value is considered as its amortized cost. 

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 

No Financial Assets /Liabilities falls under level 1, level 2 or Level 3 category, hence, no such asset/liability. 

has been valued at either through FVTOCL /FVTPL. 

(Rs In Lacs) 2023-24 2022-23 

7 Net Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable aerate Sorchocies 
(Rs in Lacs) 

844.73 732,42 

ti) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for 

wh 5,031,750 5,031,750 
calculating Basic EPS i= 

iil) Weighted Average Potential Equity Shares ; . 

iv) Total Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for 
5,031,750 5,031.750 

catculating Diluted EPS 

v) Basic Earnings per Share (2) 16.79 14.56 

vi) Diluted Earnings per Share (@) 16.79 14.56 

vil) Book Value per Equity Share (#) 77,45 60.67 

vill) Face Value per Equity Share (®} 10.00 10.00 



(i) As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are gi ven below: 

List of related parties where control exists and also related parties with whom transactions have taken 

place and relationships: 

Name of the Related Party Relationship 

TILOK CHAND CHHABRA Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

PRAKASH CHAND CHHABRA 

SOURABH CHHABRA 

FASHION SUITINGS PYT, LTD. 
ACME INDUSTRIES PVT, LTD. 

Enterprises over which Key Manageriat 
Personnel are able to exercise significant 
influence 

(i) Transactions during the year with related parties: - (Rs. ins Lakhs) 

’ Particulars ae Fee 
Management Personnel | Relative of 

ney , aad Sister Concerns 

2023-24 2023-24 2022-73 2023-24 2022-23 

inceme from services aha 

(Processing Charges Received) ? 

Net Loans and Advances, 

Deposits taken J 

Retumed *: 

Balance Outstanding as on 31" 

March of unsecured loans = 

Balance Outstanding as on 31" om 

March Debtors a/c : 

Interest Payment - . . : 

Satary 55.50 40.80 - - 

(ii) Disclosure in Respect of Major Related Party ’ 

Transactions during the year : (Amount in Lacs) 

| 

1 9 8 oe 

—— + Be | : a 

Director 6,00 0.00 

Director 0.00 0.00 



| 

Loan Returned | 

Tilok Chand Chhabra Director 0.00 100.00 
| Sourabh Chhabra Director 0.00 0.00 

2 Revenue from Operations 

Associate Fashion Suitings Pvt. Ltd. Siena 34.48 25.44 

3 | Interest Payment 

"Tilok Chand Chhabra Director 0.00 3.20 

Sourabh Chhabra Director 0.00 0.00 

4 _| Salary Payment: _ 
Prakash Chand Chhabra M.D 55,50 | 40.80 

The above entities includes related parties where the relationship existed for the part of the year and the 

amounts reported is for the period during which the related party relationship existed during the period. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Travelling & Conveyance / interest/ Professional Fee Nil Mil 

Total — im Nit 

in Lacs) 

aa & Total Value % Total Value 
Consumption Consumption 

Particulars Current Year Current Previous Year Previous 
| Year Year 

| Raw Material 
Imported % % : 
indigenously obtained 100%, 2529.62 100% 2661.98 

Spare Parts | 
i | Oi 0.00 O% 0.00 ] 
I obtained | 100%: 1336.74 100% 1100.67 | 

NOTE 43- VALUE OF IMPORTS CACULATED ON CIF BASIS 
‘ie 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year | 
Raw Material Nil Nil 

Components and Spares Parts Nil 
| Capital Goods = 381.80 24.97 
Total Nil Nil 

(a) Company's cotton acing ering the yon apt of Provident Fund and Employee State 

(b) Short term and long 

at the un-discounted air 



rendered. Leave Encashment liability is provided on accrual basis as on 31" March of every year and 

paid in next following year, 

(ce) The company is accounting leave encashment on mercantile/ actual basis. The company has 

discontinued the Gratuity policy from LIC and is now provisioning for gratuity on actual undiscounted 

basis. Hence, provision for gratuity (including any earlier shortfalls) have been provided for the year 

The Disclosures with respect to Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits” are as under: 

A. Defined Contribution Plans 

a, Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 

b. Employers Contribution to Employees’ State Insurance 

The Company has recognized the following amounts in Profit & Loss Account (Rs in Lacs) 

‘Particulars | Year Ended March 31, 2024 | Year Ended March 31, 2023 | 
38. 31.46 

c 9.21 

B. Defined Benefit Plans 
Gratuity (Non-Funded) 
Gratuity has been provided at actual (un-discounted) manner, based on the 15 days salary for every 
completed year of service. 

Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet {Amount in Lacs) 

Particulars | Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31, 
2024 2023 

Actual Value of Gratuity as at the beginning of | 58.63 70.98 
the year 
Gratuity provided during the year (a4 11.45 
Gratuity paid for the year 10.07 23.81 

Actual Value of Gratuity as at end of the year 72.68 58.63 
on 31.3. 2024 

C. Leave Encashment (Non- Funded) 

Leave Encashment has been provided at accrual basis, based on the leave standing credit of the employee as 

at the Balance Sheet date. 

Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet 

Particulars Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31, 
2024 2023 

Actual Value of Leave Encashment as at the 3.65 i" 4,36 

beginning of the year ‘ 
_Leave Encashment provided during the year 5.37 4.72 
_Leave Encashment paid for the year 4.72 5.43 
Actual Value of Leave Encashment asatendof | 4.30 3.65 
the year on 31.3,2024 

N = ABILITH 

1. The Textile Cess Committee has raised a demand of Rs. 46.26 kacs against the company. The 

ee Mumbai. The 

Company bat bs WVed.any communication from the tribunal and as per our information and 

WO ° 
HINA (he ereERN 

ding with TC Cess Appellant Tibunal. Mumbai and consequently, 



liability, if any arises will be accounted for as and when the case will be decided. The 

management being confident of winning the case, no provision of the above has been made. 

2. The Company has deposited Rs. 82246/- under protest towards demand confirmed by the order of 

Commissioner of Excise in Case No [V(55)4/45/BHL/R-IV/04/6587 Dated 18.08.2004. Company has 

filed the appeal in CESTAT. 

3. Hon'ble CESTAT Vide its Final Order No. 493-495/08 CEx. Dated 18.07.2008 reduced the penalty 

and accordingly we have filed the refund of excess penalty deposited by us. The department has 

sanctioned a sum of Rs, 114093 /- on 27.02.2009 towards excess penalty deposited by us. The 

department preferred an appeal with the Rajasthan High Court and matter is pending with High 

Court. 

4. In opinion of the management, there may be some lawsuits, claims, demand or proceedings 

against company, which arise in normal course of business. However, there is no such matter 

pending that the company expects to be material in relation to its business and which requires 

specific disclosures. The management is-confident of getting the verdict in its favor and 

therefore, no, liability on this account fs anticipated and hence no specific disclosure is being 

made for the contingent liability 

NOTE 46 - SEGMENT NG 

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may 

eam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of 

the Company's other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. Operating 

segments are reported ina manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 

decision maker (‘CODM). 

The Company's Board has identified the CODM who is responsible for financial decision making and assessing 

performance. The Company has a single operating segment as the operating results of the Company are 

rewewed on an overall basis by the CODM. 

on 24th March 2021 

Information required against additional disclosures as per amendments in Schedule Ill of Companies Act, 
2013 with respect to below mentioned clauses is “NIL" 

Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company (Para a(ri)(XII)(Y)(1)) 

Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment (Para a(li)(XII)(¥)(ii)) 
Loan & Advance made to promoters, directors, KMPs and other related parties (Para a(ii)(XiN(Y){iii)) 

Intangible Assets under development (Para a(ii(XiI)(YXv)) 
Details of Benami property held (Para ait)(Xil)(¥)(v1)) 
Willful Defaulter (Para a(it)(XIll)(Y)(viit)) 

Relationship with struck of Companies (Para a(ti)(MIll)(¥)(ix)) 

Compliance with number of layers of companies (Para a(ti)(XIN)(¥)(xi)) 
Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements (Para a(ii){XIN}(¥)(xiii)) 
Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium (Para aH) OC) (YH xtv)) 
Undisclosed Income (Para a(itip(ix)) 

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency (Para atiiiyoay <2 

a. 

b. 
Cc. 

d. 
e. 

f, 
Q. 
h. 
i. 
i. 
k. 

l. 



has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited 

suggestions from stakeholders: The Company will assess the impact on its financial statements in the period 

in which the related rules to determine the financial impact are notified and the Code becomes effective, 

NOTE 49 - Transactions with/as intermediaries 

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons(s) or entity (ies), including foreign 
entities (“intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). 

The Company has not received any fund from any party(si (Funding Party) with the understanding that the 
Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on 
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 

the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

NOTE 50 - In the opinion of the management and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value of 
loans, advances and other current assets whether debit or credit in the ordinary course of business will not 

be less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance-Sheet and provision for all known liabilities 
has been made. 

For; O.P. Dad & Co, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

COEF sks SPINTEA we. +  _K. SPINTES LT... 
=“ 4 a 

ishek lb CO eeGPB POD 
DIN: 24409237BKEY ZY5223 [P.C. CHHABRA og ____ T-CCHHABRA ]ERveeeor 

Place: Bhilwara [MANAGING DIRECTOR] [DIRECTOR] 

Dated: 30th May, 2024 



FORM MGT- Il 
JPuruent feaecraa (it pf feos toy SS and ade fp diet te Ogeechee (iagerent and Admianaratinn) Riaiek, 2014) 

Name ALK. SPINTEX LIMITED 
cIN L177 R01 994 PL COORG 

Repd office 146M STONE, CHITTOR ROAD 

BILYA KALAN, BHILWARA-31 1001 ( Rag.) 

Name of the member (4) 
Repistered address 
E-mail td 
Folio Ne! Chent fd 
DPID 
UWe, bong-ihe member (x7 0f sharcs‘of the above nomed company, hereby appoint 
1. Naine ia ‘i ‘ 

Adidiness 
F-tinail Id 
Signature : or failing Tem 

Address 
Femail td 
Signature: on farting hin 

3. Name 
Address 
F-mail fd 
Sigmnmtune 

asmy/our proxy to attend and votooena poll formofus and onumyiour behall-at the 30" Annual General Meeting 
of the Comput, to be held on the 3" September, 2024 at the Registered Office at 14 KM. Stone, Chittor road, 
Biliva Kalan, Bhilware-3 01001 at 1100) PM and at any adjoummment thereto! in respect of such resolunens me are 
indicated below 

Kes lition 

| | Consider and adopt Audited Financial Statement: reports of the Board of directors and Auditor for the 
vent cruleal 31 Moreh, 2024 

2 | Reappointment of Mr Tilok Chard Chhabri who i# liable to tetete be notion being eligible offers 
Hinsself for reap pen otment 

4. | Ratiheuition of Reminemtion of Coat Anditors tor the Finuneial Year 224-25 

4. | To inerease borrowing limil of the company 
§._| To Create charge on (he movable and immovable property of dhe company 
6 | Teappeint Independent Directors 

Signed this... davof.,... 2024 Signamre of shurehelder 

Siomature of Proxy holdons) 
Note: This form of proxy inorder ts be effective should be duly completed atkd deposited ut the Repiwered Office 
of the Company. not less than 48 hours before the commencemen of the Meeting. 

ATTENDENCE SLIP 

Lherety record my preaence af the 30° Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30° September, 
2024 at 1.000m at 14" KOM Mile Stone Chittor Garh Read, Hitia Jilin . Bhilwara 

Full Name of the Shareholder (in Ghock Leticrs) 
Folio No. No of Shares held Name of Prowy (if the Proxy attends, matead of 
the Shareholder) 

Signature of Shareholder / Prion 

Members atiending the mectng must fll a 
hall 

Members are requested to being their cope of the anugal rapist FS ating 


